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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk may be
attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks
of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The
greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatso-

ever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED (the “Company”) col-
lectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the List-
ing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquires,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this
report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are

founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

Venturepharm now stands at the forefront of the most exciting
and dynamic shift in the history of the contract research
industry. Drug development outsourcing is expected to more
than double over the next seven years as pharmaceutical and
biotechnology companies increasingly look for ways to reduce
their fixed costs and improve the efficiencies of bringing im-
portant new medicines to market. Over the past several years,
Venturepharm has positioned itself to be able to succeed in
this emerging environment. Among contract research organi-
zations (CROs), only Venturepharm has the combined breadth
of services, geographic footprint, and experience managing
large partnerships, as well as more than 300 employees today

in China.

This is a very trying time for CRO Clinical and Pharmaceuti-
cal development sector, 2010 was an exceptionally challeng-
ing year for the Company. Many financial, regulatory and in-
dustrial environment changes have temporary impact on the
Company’s performance. Though we have never run into such
challenges, we also have never been so confident of our future
because the continued growth of the China healthcare indus-
try and the global recession provide great opportunities for
the Company to capitalize on the increasing international
outsourcing. We continue to innovate and adapt to the changes,
and strategically position the Company as an Asian based life
science leader in China, with a world-class most affordable
full service plus model, covering discovery, preclinical and
clinical study, pharmaceutical development services, com-

pound partnering and royalty sharing.

I’m pleased to report the strategic progress that Venturepharm
made in 2010 and outlook of 2011:

Though the Company reports negative financial results in many
adjustments from none operation aspects in 2010. We still have

accomplished a lot:

. We maintain to be China’s No. 1 in new drug applica-
tion and in clinical trials study in terms of the numbers
of ongoing trials studies which drive our future growth.
We have obtained about 60 new applications approv-
als for IP (Intellectual property) application, clinical
trials, import drug licenses and manufacturing.

. We are proud of being completing one of China larg-
est scale world-class drug R&D center.
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STRATEGIC AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

The pharmaceutical industry is undergoing dramatic change.
China is expected to become one of the world’s top healthcare
markets by as early as 2011. By 2020, Shanghai area will be
No. 1 in the world for the number of scientists engaged in
commercial drug discovery research, and Chinese patent of-
fice will be No. 1 in the number of patents granted, A majority
of the top 20 pharmaceutical companies in the world will have
R&D centers in Shanghai. Shanghai great area will have as
many biotech companies as San Diego and more new drugs

launched than Boston.

Great opportunities create great business. Traditional models
are no longer enough. To capture the opportunities, the Com-
pany has made strategic progress towards our vision to be one
of the most affordable word-class fully-integrated R&D ser-
vice giant. As a market leader in clinical trial study and phar-
maceutical development service in China, the Company made
strategic move by JV (Joint venture) with world top clinical
research company follow by acquiring IP assets and transfer

those know-how from west.

The Company had also made great progress in setting up vari-
ous strategic platforms worldwide to provide most affordable
fully-integrated world-class R&D services. Commitment to
R&D is critical to the Company’s long-term success in the

pharmaceutical industry.
1. PRECLINICAL SERVICES

To expand the Company’s therapeutic width and pro-
vide scale benefits, we continue to seek for pharma-
ceutical asset acquisition opportunities for new
segments. We expect our clients will gradually embrace
more full service outsourcing, and our mission is to
deliver reliable value-added integrated project man-

agement services.

VPS-Preclinical is building a three-phase 500,000
square feet lab, which probably is one of the largest in
Asia. The new facilities will provide preclinical ani-
mal testing full service in China, including discovery,
toxicology, pathology and animal models of Disease

services.
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CLINICAL SERVICES

VPS (Venturepharm Service CRO Group ) is a No.1
clinical services organization in China that provides
global clinical, preclinical and regulatory affair
services. It is a leader in oncology, hepatitis, vaccine,
CNS, cardiovascular, hematology, diabetes, allergy and

immunology.

The Company heavily invests in establishing clinical
research operation units to drive the future growth of

the Company:

. VPS Clinical is international listed company
that take a leading position in clinical trail base
in China. VPS Clinical focuses on innovation
drug and MCT(Multiple Center Clinical Trial),
it is a clinical trail research organization fa-

mous in greater, faster, better and more

economic.

. VPRA-Porsche Center, Safe arrival at full
speed ahead, First and Best in Class for ten
years.

. VPS-mart Postmarketing clinical research in-

stitute of drug postmarketing,the leader for
clinical research and medical services in Asia.
. CNS-VPS Institute, Clinical Research Institute
of Neuropsychiatry, pain treatment center.
. Vacc-VPS intitute, Vaccine clinical research
base in China.

. Onc-VPS, Cancer and AIDS clinical research
centre.
. Diab-VPS, clinical research Centre of Endo-

crinology and Diabetes.

. CV-VP Cardiovascular Pacific-Asia clinical
research center.

. SAS-Venturepharm data management and

medical statistics center.
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3. PHARMACEUTICAL DEVELOPMENT SER-
VICES

Product royalty and compound partnership will be one
of the Company’s drivers for revenue growth. We plan
to invest more in building pharmaceutical development
services capabilities and continue to add new products
to our product pipelines through pharmaceutical de-
velopment service (PDS). This will not only help
achieve royalty revenue growth, but also further im-
prove our fully integrated services capabilities to pro-

vide low-cost high quality drugs.

4. API (ACTIVE PHARMACEUTICAL
INGREDIENT) DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

The Company continues to build up capabilities for
API development services, custom synthesis and scale

up service delivery.

EXCITING FUTURE

Looking ahead, we remain confident that we will be at the
forefront in capitalizing upon the global outsourcing opportu-
nity as it unfolds. The Chinese pharmaceutical industry is ex-
periencing consolidation amongst key players, a trend which
is expected to gain momentum in the future. While striving
unceasingly to exercise strong leadership in the industry in
China, we remain firmly committed to unlocking shareholder

value through the delivery of high quality service solutions.

Based on our strong fundamentals of innovation, entrepreneur-
ship and aggressive marketing skills, we are determined to
capitalize upon the global outsourcing opportunities and re-
main committed to enhancing shareholder value, as we ac-
tively pursue our strategy of growth through both organic and
inorganic means. To complement our expansion strategy, we
are also looking to further strengthen our service delivery

through acquisition.
In summary, we have aggressive and exciting plans for 2011,

and once again we intend to deliver on our goals. In the year

ahead, we expect to meet the following milestones:

| VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED
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KEY GROWTH DRIVER 1 OF 2011: SET UP A
FULLY INTEGRATED HIGH QUALITY MOST
AFFORDABLE DRUG DISCOVERY GLOBAL
SERVICE DIVISION

Clinical study and PDS will be the two engines to drive
the growth of this sector.

KEY GROWTH DRIVER 2 OF 2011: FURTHER
IMPROVE PRECLINICAL STUDIES CAPABILI-
TIES

We aim at turning a No. 1 VPS CRO in domestic mar-
ket to a global specialty pharmacy and Biotech
company, by setting up sales and marketing offices in
North America and Europe, and expanding through
global alliance and M&A of global CRO companies.

KEY GROWTH DRIVER 3 FOR 2011: COM-
POUND PARTNERSHIP MODELS:

The Company will continue the co-finance, co-devel-
opment and co-marketing strategy and engage in stra-
tegic licensing of therapeutic compound pipelines, and
marketing of projects to China, an emerging global top

five market.

In closing, Venturepharm has a committed group of
employees who are bright, enthusiastic and hard-
working. I would like to thank the management and
all of our employees for their dedication and
commitment. On behalf of everyone at Venturepharm,

we extend our sincerest appreciation to our sharehold-
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Company. We will deliver improved value in 2010 and
the years to come. We look forward to your ongoing
support and to sharing this dynamic growth phase of
our journey with you.
By order of the Board T LR
William Xia Guo E
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Year ended 31 December
HET A= —HIRERE
2010 2009
e S 25 ZEFIE
RMB’000 RMB’000
YN 25TH NG 2TH
Results S
Revenue g 37,687 47,308
(Loss)/Profit for the year ENETE) 1A (57,260) 6,033
Assets and Liabilities e N ATE
Total Assets G E 200,150 210,185
Total Liabilities HEE 143,825 97,281
Shareholders’ equity Ji SR A A 59,544 111,527
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For the year ended 31 December 2010, consolidated
turnover amounted to RMB37.,687,000 representing a
decrease of 20% compared with RMB47,308,000 of
last year .

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the loss be-
fore income tax was RMB 55,422,000 compared with
profit of RMB 6,310,000 of last year. The loss in
2010 was mainly contributed to the loss of total
RMB 70,604,000 without direct cash flow out as fol-
lowed compared with the loss of same items of total
RMB13,119,000 included in profit of last year, in-
cluding loss on revaluation of convertible bond RMB
22,193,000 (2009: RMB 9.,996,000), provision for
impairment losses of trade receivables RMB
9,747,000 (2009: RMB 1,245,000), provision for im-
pairment losses of work-in-progress RMB 14,451,000,
impairment loss on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss RMB10,185,000, exchange
loss RMB9,818,000 (2009: RMB 1,878,000) and
provision for impairment of intangible assets
RMB4,210,000. Excluding the items listed above for
both 2010 and 2009, the profit before income tax for
2010 should be RMB 15,182,000 representing a de-
crease of 22% compared with RMB19,429,000 of

last year.

| VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2010, consolidated turnover
amounted to RMB37,687,000 representing a decrease of 20%
compared with RMB47,308,000 of last year. The 2010 con-
solidated turnover included approximately RMB4,316,000 was
derived from contracted pharmaceutical development services
(PDS), approximately RMB26,755,000 from contracted
clinical research services (VPS), and approximately
RMB5,400,000 from franchise commercialization.

In terms of revenue structure, the revenue of VPS amounted
to 71% of the total revenue, which was increased by 8% com-
pared with that of last year. The revenue of PDS deceased by
71% and the revenue of royalty income decreased by 4% com-
pared with that of 2009. As there was a significant change in
the Chinese Government’s policies and regulations in drug
approval, especially the newly released GMP regulation
(revised in 2010 and effective in 2011), which led to the in-
crease in rigidity and cautiously in government approval and
increased the timing and risk in new drug development, the
revenue of PDS dropped significantly in 2010.

The overall gross profit margin was 57% compared with 56%
in last year. General and administrative expenses amounted to
RMB62,592 000 representing an increase of 262% compared
with RMB17,304,000 in 2009, and the increase was mainly
attributable to the provision for impairment of new drugs
technology, work-in-progress and account receivables related
to PDS projects, reflecting the influence of changes in Chi-
nese government’s policies and regulations mentioned before.
Finance costs amounted to RMB 14,828,000 representing an
increase of 135% compared to RMB6,301,000 in 2009, due to
the significant increase in exchange loss.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 10 September 2007, Venturepharm Laboratories Limited,
issued bonds of an aggregate principal amount of CHF15,000,
000 (the “Bonds”), which will be expired in 9 September 2012.

Because of the fair value change and exchange rate change in
2010, approximately total loss of RMB 29,129,000 related to
the bonds, in which loss on fair value change of the Bonds
was approximately RMB 22,193,000 and exchange loss of the
Bonds was approximately RMB 6,936,000 was contributed to
53% total loss before tax of RMB 55,422,000 in 2010.
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At 31 December 2010, the carrying amounts and
fair value of the non-current convertible bonds for
the Group amounted to approximately of
RMB 108,005,000 (2009: RMB78,333,000).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEAR-
ING RATIO

During the year, the Group maintained a sound financial posi-
tion and prudent liquidity risk management, and had sufficient
cash to meet the need of its business development. As at 31
December 2010, the Group had current assets of approximately
RMB178,072,000, among which RMB6,910,000 was cash and

cash equivalents. The Group had maintained sufficient cash.
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year, the Group's transactions were substantially
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group closely moni-
tors its foreign currency risk from time to time and will use

appropriate hedging when necessary.
BUSINESS REVIEW

Aiming at long-term development and based on its business
transformation strategy of transforming from a leading tech-
nology transfer supplier to an enterprise integrating pharma-
ceutical development and products commercialization, the
Group continued to expand its product lines and accelerate
the establishment of the marketing network so as to rapidly
capture its market share. The Group has managed to establish
a comprehensive value-added business mode for value chains
such as Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient (API), formulation
and analysis technology, pre-clinical research, clinical trial,
regulatory affair (RA) service and franchise commercialization,
thereby enhancing the profitability and risk resistance capa-
bility of the Group, and enabling the Group to secure long-

term stable profitability in future.
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SALES AND MARKETING

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group had signed
22 new contracts with contract value of approximately RMB35,
974,000 representing a decrease of 48% compared to RMB69,
310,000 in 2009. Because of the changes in government policy,
our customers postponed their investment on new drug

development.

The Group continued its investment in the enhancement of
marketing capability and the expansion of market network,
and introduced new technologies in the domestic market un-
der the brand of Venturepharm while striving to establish and
expand overseas markets under the brand of VPS-CRO. Dur-
ing the year, the Group not only focused on business expansion,
but also paid more attention to the enhancement of brand value
and the improvement of professional capability, aiming at be-
coming a comprehensive and reliable technology and service
provider with the most prestigious brand and leading

technologies.

CLINICAL RESEARCH SERVICE (VPS)

Taken clinical study as the prime focus, the Group has estab-
lished the most integrated service in the country, which pro-
vides a series of services ranging from phase I clinical and
bioequivalence studies, phase II-III clinical studies, and phase
IV post-marketing clinical study, to data management and
medical statistics, and medical administration related service.
Meanwhile, the Group makes a great efforts to improve the
professional capability involving the above mentioned services
and has preliminarily established 13 professional research in-
stitutions including Venturepharm-CBI phase I clinical research
center, VPS-mart phase IV clinical research and academic pro-
motion center, SAS-Venturepharm data management and medi-
cal statistics center, VP-Porsche RA service center, OHH-VP
Pacific-Asia clinical research institution for oncology, TangXi-
VP Pacific-Asia clinical research institution for Diabetes,
CNSVP Psychoneurologic and pain management Pacific-Asia
clinical research institution, CV-VP Cardiovascular Pacific-
Asia clinical research center, AIDS and hepatitis Pacific-Asia
clinical research institution, DermNova Pacific-Asia clinical
research institution for dermatosis and gynecologic disease and
TCM-VP clinical research center for natural drug and tradi-
tional Chinese medicine, etc.
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In the meantime, the Group has built a nation-wide network
with bases in Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou and offices in
over 30 provincial capital cities for clinical monitoring and
academic promotion, covering over 80% hospitals which have
been authorized to conduct clinical research. The Group has
the capacity of operating more than 60 phase I and BE projects
each year and conducting 50 phase II-III clinical projects
simultaneously. Meanwhile, the Group is able to carry out 4
phase IV clinical trials with large sample size (2,000 subjects)
at the same period.

PRE-CLINICAL RESEARCH SERVICES (THE PRE-
STAFF SERVICE)

Venturepharm group is building Asia CMC drug evaluation
center, it’s a GLP standard pre-clinical laboratory with a total
area of 50,000 square meters, and the laboratory will be the
largest in Asia after completion. At present the first-phase infra-
structure construction has been finished and two internal deco-
ration designs are ongoing. The newly completed center will
adopt international standards from building design, process
layout, equipment selection and installation, personnel, system
construction and so on. It is planed to undertake 30% of the CBI
R&D outsourcing business, so as to serve the top consumers of
Europe and the USA and domestic and foreign small and me-
dium-sized enterprise at the same time. The main business cen-
ter platform has: drug discovery experimental platform; Toxi-
cology experiment platform; Pathological experiment platform;
Disease animal model experimental platform.

PHARMACEUTICAL DEVELOPMENT SERVICE (PDS)

The Group's portfolio for technology R&D and transfer cov-
ers 13 major and high growth therapeutic areas such as
endocrine, CNS, cardiovascular disease, dermatosis, cancer,
AIDS, allergy and antibiotics. Several of its products are in-
troduced to the domestic market for the first time and are ex-
clusive products. Furthermore, several advanced technology
platforms have been established for drug synthesis, pharma-
ceutical analysis and drug delivery systems.

Because of the changes in the Chinese Government’s policies
and regulations in drug approval, especially the newly released
GMP regulation (revised in 2010 and effective in 2011), which
led to the increase in rigidity and cautiously in government
approval and increased the timing and risk in new drug
development, the revenue of PDS dropped significantly in
2010. The group had reviewed the strategy of PDS, inspected
the assets related to PDS and make necessary provision or

impairment to such assets.
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Along with a reinforced investment, the Group's R&D strength
continues to maintain a leading position in the industry. Un-
der the circumstance of such strict and delayed review by State
Food and Drug Administration (SFDA), the Group still ob-
tained 13 new Clinical Study Permits (CSPs) and 3 Manufac-
turing Permits (MPs), maintaining the No.1 position in China.
For the year ended 31 December 2010, the total number of
CSPs obtained by the Group accumulated to 327 and the total
number of MPs accumulated to 131.

ACTIVE PHARMACEUTICAL INGREDIENT (API)

Aside from technology transfer projects, the business of API
is developing in a comprehensive way. Despite that API’s sales
revenue accounts for less than 1% of the total revenue in 2010,
it is able to provide integrated services including custom
synthesis, API and intermediate marketing and API related
services. It is believed that API business could realize a dra-
matic growth in 2011.

PATENTS

The Group has always placed great emphasis on the protec-
tion of intellectual property rights. Since its incorporation and
up to 31 December 2010, the Group has applied over 500
patents.

PROSPECTS

To capitalize on the opportunity of the increased demand of glo-
bal R&D outsourcing market, the company has made best ef-
forts to improve its service capacities and performance in R&D
outsourcing service by providing fully integrated pharmaceuti-
cal services that include VP Discovery, API (Active Pharma-
ceutical Ingredient), PDS (Pharmaceutical Development
Service), Pre-clinical research, CRS (Contract Research Service)
and RAS (Regulatory Affairs Service). In the meantime, the
Group believes that as the government further standardizes and
implements its supervision, the market environment will become
more favourable to the Group given its competitive edge.
Meanwhile, the investment from Chinese government into the
scientific research of biologic and pharmaceutical technology,
with the investment of RMBG6.6 billion into major new drug
research included, will stimulate greatly to the R&D service
market. The upcoming new booming age of the pharmaceutical
industry will not only present the Group with rare and precious
business opportunities, but also considerable return for the

shareholders.

2010 4 J # i
ANNUAL REPORT

WEE RNE R 14, AR — BRI T G
PBEHNAT , 7E B KA LU0 DB A I A 0 R, (53R 0E
P 51 fh B o BB BRI L 1 13 BR B R S b K 34
R, BEARFENE —, AFEE_Z—TE
A=+—H, B BRI R B A e 2EE 3275,
R A pERT ] B AR A 131 5,

APL %5

Wi B A SR BE T H RO BTN ST, H 4 APTSERS, IE|A)
RO RS, BER T FRIUE APLEHE SR 1%,
{E H A A AT DASR M E A, APURIHR [ 85 & , APTAH
IoH i 5 2 S O MRS 3685, MR T — TR g Ay L
KRR,

A

AL — AR A AN F L E R %
A=A H IR B EE A 500 I,

JE 8

FH LR B RO 2 St i 5 T R R 2 AMGE , AR B
Ti8Ev B OB RE ) RE R, DAL B Y S B (VP-
Discovery), A 20 ZERI 7> (APD), 4555 (PDS), iR Al
W9, BRR G RIRTFSMRB (CRS), ZEEURBS(RAS) Z 4xTHIAR
ErIRRES o R Ry AL AR, W T 380 4 o B A
PR MR AT — R, B, RS E
AP O AR Y T 3, R, AP BIBUR AR AR Y A 36 22
BT EIBIIT T BB, SAFE ORI MBI AR
W 66 RETTHITCA , ST 8 AR T35 2 R R A RIS
FAAE 5 B4R AT SE BT ARSI P AR SR B A AR ] 245
AR , W I ISR A AR B [

BEamiEXEARAAIS



-

2010 4 J i
ANNUAL REPORT

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has not been any change to the capital structure of the

Company since that date.
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Company invested its surplus fund through its principal
bank in investment market , which was RMB 60,138,000.

EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

The Group’s remuneration policy is basically determined by
the performance of individual employees. In addition to sala-
ries and bonuses, employee benefits included medical and pen-

sion contributions and share options schemes.
APPROPRIATION

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final divi-
dend for the year ended 31 December 2010.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audit committee of the Board has reviewed the consoli-
dated financial statements for the year, including the account-
ing principles and new and revised accounting standards
adopted by the Company, and discussed matters relating to

auditing, internal controls and financial reporting.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. William Xia GUO, is the Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer, Managing Director and Joint Chief Technology Of-
ficer of the Group. Mr. Guo is responsible for strategic plan-
ning and development, overall management and R&D activi-
ties of the Group. Mr. Guo obtained with a Master degree in
science from University of Toronto in March 1997. Mr. Guo
has also completed various approved courses for the degree of
Master of Business Administration in the Heriot-Watt
University. Before establishing the Group in December 1998,
Mr. Guo had worked for two pharmaceutical companies in
Canada, namely Ortho-McNeil Inc. and Novopharm Limited,
both are pharmaceutical companies in Canada as research sci-
entist and process development manager, respectively. Mr. Guo
has approximately 10 years experience in research, pharma-
ceutical development and management in the pharmaceutical
industry. Mr. Guo is a member of the American Association
of Pharmaceutical Scientists and the National Pharmaceutical

Sciences Group Inc.

Dr. Maria Xue Mei SONG, is an executive Director. Dr. Song
is responsible for Clinical Research (R&D) and also the head of
the Human Resources Management Department of the Group.
Dr. Song graduated from China Concord Medical University
with a Doctorate degree in clinical medicine in July 1995. She
is also a Registered Pharmacist in the PRC. Prior to joining the
Group in February 2000, Ms. Song had served as general man-

ager of Beijing Tiancifu Biopharmaceutical Co. Ltd.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. FENG Tao, is nominated as a non-executive Director by
C Tech Fund. Mr. Feng obtained a Master degree in Science
from the Department of Statistics and Applied Probability from
the University of Alberta in June 1992. Mr. Feng has been
serving as the Vice President Officer of The Foundation of
Science and Technology for Development of the State Plan-
ning Committee, State Economic and Trade Commission of
the PRC and China Science Academy since September 1999.

He was appointed as non-executive Director in August 2002.
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Mr. WU Xin, is a non-executive Director nominated by C Tech
Fund. Mr. Wu is a vice-president of New Margin. Mr. Wu
obtained his Master of Science degree from Stanford Univer-
sity in Engineering-Economic Systems in 1994 and a Bach-
elor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from Univer-
sity of Illinois in May 1993. Prior to joining New Margin, Mr.
‘Wu worked in Chase Capital Partners, an investment firm, and
at Robertson Stephens & Company, an investment firm based
in San Francisco. He was appointed as non-executive Director
in August 2002.

Dr. Nathan Xin ZHANG, is a non-executive Director. Dr.
Zhang is the former chief executive officer of Chipscreen Bio-
sciences Ltd., a leading Chinese biotech company specialized
in innovated cancer, diabetes, and osteoporosis drug discovery.
Dr. Zhang had worked with KPMG LLP and Credit Suisse
First Boston. Dr. Zhang holds an M.D. from Tianjin Medical
University, Ph. D from University of Pennsylvania, and an
MBA from the University of Chicago, USA.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WANG Hong Bo, is an independent non-executive Direc-
tor and is the chairman of the audit committee. He is a mem-
ber of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wang
graduated from Nan Kai University with a master degree. Mr.
Wang is presently a finance manager of TCL Group Limited.
Mr. Wang has over 10 years of experience in auditing. He was
appointed as independent non-executive Director in Septem-
ber 2004.

Mr. Paul CONTOMICHALOS, is an independent non-execu-
tive Director. He was awarded an MBA from the Columbia
University in May 1985. Mr. Contomichalos had worked for
Bristol-Myers Squibb (BMS). His first position in China was
to start up the consumer over-the-counter business of Bristol-
Myers Squibb in 1994. He became Chairman and President of
Bristol-Myers Squibb China from 1997 to 2000. Prior to work-
ing in China, Mr. Contomichalos held various key consumer
marketing and business development positions with Bristol-
Myers Squibb in the USA and Canada and has about 18 years
of experience in this field. He was appointed as independent

non-executive Director in August 2002.
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Mr. WU Ming Yu, is an independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Wu is a member of the education committee of the China
(Hainan) Reform Development Research Institute, a member
of Standing Committee of China Association of Science and
Technology; President of Chinese Society of Technology
Economics; Honorary President of China Society of Science
and Science Technology Policy Research and Vice-President
of China Society of Land Economics Research. Mr. Wu has
held the post of Vice Minister of the Development Research
Center of the State Council, Vice Minister of the State Science
and Technology Commission; President of China Technology
Economic Research Institute; Vice President of China Society
of Science and Science Technology Policy; Economist of
Economy Research Institute of the State Council and Presi-
dent of Asia-Pacific Research Institute. He was appointed as

independent non-executive Director in August 2002.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Group’s senior management comprises the following

employees:

Dr. Tom Tuo JIN, is the Joint Chief Technology Officer. Dr.
Jin holds M.D. from University of Toronto and Ph. D from
Hokkaido University. Dr. Jin engaged in education and phar-
maceutical R&D in Japan, USA Novartis and Canada for years.
Dr. Jin was a researcher with Aventis-Pasteur (USA), Super-
visor of Formulation Division with BioDelivery Science
(USA), as well as Associate Professor with Long Island
University. Dr. Jin is the dean of Sinican Institute. Dr. Jin pub-
lished 25 articles in periodical and applied for 10 patents. Dr.
Jin is a member of American Association of Pharmaceutical
Scientists.

Dr. Tarun GUPTA, is the co-head of the Group’s Business
Development Department (International Division). He is also
the Chief Executive Officer of P.K. Pharmatech in India. Dr.
Gupta has obtained his degree of Bachelor of Medicine and
Bachelor of Surgery in December 1982. He worked with Lu-
pin Laboratories Limited of India before he joined the Group
in December 2000 and was seconded to the exclusive market-
ing and distribution agent in Hong Kong in 1996. He was re-
sponsible for marketing and distributing of product of Lupin
Group in the Asia region. He has over 10 years of experience

in the field of pharmaceutical industry.
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The Directors of the Company present their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 De-
cember 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out
in notes 8 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by busi-

ness segments is set out in note 5 to the financial statements.
RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income on page 40 of the annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final divi-
dend for the year ended 31 December 2010

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group and the Company during the year are set out in note

6 to the financial statements.
SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
15 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company

during the year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.
FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 107
to 118.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report are:

Managing Director:
William Xia GUO
Executive Director:
Maria Xuemei SONG
Non-executive Directors:

FENG Tao
WU Xin
Nathan Xin ZHANG

Independent Non-executive Directors:

WANG Hong Bo
Paul CONTOMICHALOS
WU Ming Yu

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with Articles 95 and 121 of the Company’s Ar-
ticles of Association, WU Xin, FENG Tao, Nathan Xin
ZHANG, WANG Hong Bo, Paul CONTOMICHALOS and
WU Ming Yu retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for

re-election.

Apart from Nathan Xin ZHANG and WANG Hong Bo, who
do not have a service contract, each of the Directors has en-
tered into a service contract with the Company for three years
from 10 July 2003 (the “Listing Date”). Each of the Executive
Directors and Non-executive Directors was appointed as Di-
rector of the Company respectively subject to termination in
certain circumstances as stipulated in the relevant service
contracts, if applicable.

On 11 July 2010, the service contracted with each Director
other than Nathan Xin ZHANG and WANG Hong Bo, expired

and be renewed for one more year.

Save as disclosed above, no Directors proposed for re-elec-
tion at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without pay-

ment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTEREST
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBEN-
TURES

As at 31 December 2010, the interests and short positions of
the Company’s Directors and chief executives in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its asso-
ciated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Se-
curities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), which are required
(a) to notify the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have taken under
such provision of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were

as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

1 The Company

S ERATEON BNy AR 03 K 05 < A

REF-FET A= H, AAFZEF L EETH
N B ) B ARG B G 3 L o e B R (%7
LI EEGI DS XV i) ety MBS @, A
()R IR 27 SN BB 2 XV 35 7 56 8 r b g A4
O3 ) A AT 3 58 5 A PR A (B SZ e D) 2 Wt B IR0
(BRI S 27 S B R )% S SO s A E R R R
ZHERREIRAT ) B(D)ARIR R I BB il 5 352 1%, 851
AR BTk B R i 2 fEan SR s B (o) R A 3E A 2R |
RIS 5.46 2 5.67 Wik Z fiE s MIRE T

TR ) 1B oy B R B P 5 2 B A

(L)  AAHE

shares in which

Number of
Number of

interested shares in which
(other than interested under Total Approximate
Type of under equity physically settled number percentage of
Name interest Capacity derivatives) equity derivatives of shares interest
EEE R b L3 ¥-evEis
BB B EA  RAMETERA HE i W4
4 FE 2 0N =871 fiTHE T HERS) s ety 8 A B 173 850 Ak
(Note 3)
(FfF5E 3)
William Xia GUO Personal Beneficial owner 9,110,377 9,570,000 18,680,377 5.14
William Xia GUO Corporate Interest of a controlled 149,432,583 - 149,432,583 41.11
Corporation (Note 1)
William Xia GUO Corporate Interest of a controlled 15,966,073 - 15,966,073 4.39
Corporation (Note 2)
HE EPN HinEA N 9,110,377 9,570,000 18,680,377 5.14
HE A VS HINE BIRERS (MFEE 1) 149,432,583 - 149,432,583 41.11
£ | 23 ERE RS (P 2) 15,966,073 - 15,966,073 4.39
Note 1: The controlled corporation, Venturepharm Holdings Fir1 . 250 EVenturepharm Holdings Inc. 1 258 56

Inc., is 47.63 % directly held by Mr. William Xia
GUO and 49.00 % held by Mr. William Xia GUO
through Winsland Agents Limited, his wholly and
beneficially owned company incorporated in Brit-

ish Virgin Islands.
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Mfzt2: 25k E Bright Excel Assets Limited < BT
H] Venturepharm Holdings Inc. B 25 HEH .

Note 2: The controlled corporation, Bright Excel Assets
Limited, is 100 % beneficially owned by
Venturepharm Holdings Inc.

Mk 3. #EHFHRLEITHN B EYHFEIRANTE TR
T N2 Z T 15 AR IE B UK 2 bl B iR T
JRBERT B2t 2 ISR AR . FFIE#II T -

Note 3: Various interests of the Directors and chief execu-
tives pursuant to physically settled equity deriva-
tives are through share options granted under the
Pre-1PO share option scheme. Details of which are
set forth as follows:

Number of shares in
which interested under physically
settled equity derivatives as at

Name 20 June 2003 and 31 December 2010 Date of grant Exercise price

NEERZAESNA S TH R

SR -FETF A= R

IR &S AT T A
: TR B H & H FiifE
William Xia GUO 7,200,000 20-Jun-03 HK$0.32
William Xia GUO 360,000 2-Mar-05 HK$0.52
William Xia GUO 360,000 14-Dec-05 HK$0.45
William Xia GUO 324,000 10-Aug-06 HK$0.36
William Xia GUO 966,000 10-May-07 HK$0.625
William Xia GUO 360,000 7-Apr-09 HK$0.435
HE 7,200,000 CEE=AFANASAH 032 #5T
Ey-) 360,000 TEERFEZHATA 0.52 #Je
WE 360,000 “EREHET A TMA 0.45 #IT
HE 324,000 “ERARFENAHTH 0.36 #57C
R 966,000 “EELERATH 0.625 # T
FE 360,000 ZEZNAFEMNALH 0.435 ¥#50

R SCA R Z R A B ], dRUL, TR
TE=F+ A= HRITEAZ BB 30% 2 1

Options granted to Mr. William Xia GUO contain a vesting
schedule, pursuant to which may exercise up to 30 % of the

underlying shares after 31 December 2003, up to another 30
% of the underlying shares after 31 December 2004 and the
balance after 31 December 2005. The relevant options will
expire after ten years from the date of grant. Mr. William Xia
GUO has undertaken to the Stock Exchange that he will not
exercise their options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Op-
tions Scheme within the first 12 months from the Listing Date

JBHE R B B|PAE T H = — HEITEAZ AR
HHER30% 2 e, MR —FFHET A=t —HE
FTEER T Z WABCHE . A7 IR S B R S S 2 1 1 -4 i
o FREFRA IR CL A A BT R a, AT H R R 121
HP, BN G AT CEBOARYER 1 1 2 B 5% 6 i S P HE it 2 42
Z IR .

BEeamuEXARAEI21
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(2) A subsidiary of the Company - Beijing Dezhong- () ARATZMEA T — AL iE R ALY R
Venture Pharmaceutical Technology Development PR 2 7]
Company Limited

Approximate

Capital contribution percentage of

on a Sino-foreign interest of

co-operative joint shareholding in

Name Type of interest Capacity venture joint venture

H— M 1E T S R RE

e HE 2 38 ) iy P A B HE ZHERR A 4y L

William Xia GUO Corporate Interest of a controlled US$111,000 12.83

corporation (Note 1)
E AT ZAE R R AR (P 1) 111,000 375 12.83

Note 1: The interest is held by Beijing Venturepharm Biotech

Pharmaceutical Technology Company Limited, a
limited liability company incorporated in the PRC,
for which 99% of its shareholding is beneficially
held by Mr. William Xia GUO and 1% held by Dr.
Maria Xue-mei SONG.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none of the
Directors and chief executive had any interests or short posi-
tions in any securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
are required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO); or (b)
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the regis-
ter referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as it is known to any Directors, chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 December 2010, the interests and short
positions of persons in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed pursuant to Divi-
sion 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required,
pursuant to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein were as follows:
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FEBRR

AN RULMES R EETBARRM, R %41
“HAZEA—H, TN LR AR G2 Bl RAR B
FRE R e IRORT T ZER AR 7 SO B R 191 565 XV 058 2 B3
35 ERAE R, BFARYR S o7 MU B I 31 265 XV B4R 336
WD A i B e T 2 M i SR

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name Capacity shares interest
i i By H HE 2 BE 40 T 53 L
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. (Note 1) Beneficial owner 149,432,583 41.11
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 15,966,073 4.39
Bright Excel Assets Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 15,966,073 4.39
William Xia GUO (Notes 1, 2 and 3) Beneficial owner and interest 182,069,033 50.09

of controlled corporations

Venturepharm Holdings Inc.  (Fffi¥ 1) jgink: 2PN 149,432,583 41.11
Venturepharm Holdings Inc.  (Fff5¥ 2) sk E RS 15,966,073 4.39
Bright Excel Assets Limited  (Fff#E 2) =%t 2PN 15,966,073 4.39
FRE L, 2 & 3) AR N S A vk i o 182,069,033 50.09

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Com-

pany

Note 1: Venturepharm Holdings Inc. is 47.63% directly held
by Mr. William Xia GUO and 49.00% held by Mr.
William Xia GUO through Winsland Agent Limited,
his wholly and beneficially owned company incor-

porated in the British Virgin Islands.

Note 2: The controlled corporation, Bright Excel Assets
Limited, is 100 % beneficially owned by
Venturepharm Holdings Inc.

Note 3:  Apart from shares held through Venturepharm Hold-
ings Inc., the interest of 16,310,377 shares com-
prising of 7,200,000 and 360,000 shares underly-
ing the options granted to him under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme and Share Option Scheme re-
spectively are beneficially owned by Mr. William
Xia GUO.

TAS 2y i) FBe B Bl T 2 B

Mz 1. Venturepharm Holdings Inc. 4 5l i1 25 & S5 4
HIZFFH 47.63% HEHE, DAR 552 554750
Winsland Agent Limited( J/ 35 /8 i Lo # B i fip ik
AL, HIFBIEAE R A E R R ) I 49.00% JEHE,

MzE2: 2575 E Bright Excel Assets Limited 4 BB HETE

] Venturepharm Holdings Inc. 2 25 HEH .

Mzt 3: [ Venturepharm Holdings Inc 756 2 B
Sf, FEIEEE A 16,310,377 R GHHE 7,
H 1 F5ARIE BT 1K 2 P B B B A w3 e il
JRHE it 12 T 10 2 T RE BT K 517 7,200,000
W03 Fe 360,000 BERE(

BEamiuEXARAAEI23
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, there was
no other persons who was recorded in the register of the Com-
pany as having interest or short position in the shares or un-
derlying shares of the Company which would fall to be dis-
closed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO or which were required, pursuant to section 336 of
Part XV of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to

therein.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No other contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time dur-

ing the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

1. Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the share-
holder on 31 March 2003, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
in order to recognize and reward the contribution of
certain Directors, senior management and advisers, the
details of which are set out in the paragraph head “Share
Option Scheme” in Appendix IV to the Prospectus. As
at 20 June 2003, options comprising a total of 11,520,
000 underlying shares were granted. As at 31 Decem-
ber 2010, the options outstanding are 11, 520,000 and
no options granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Op-
tion Scheme had been exercised, cancelled or lapsed.
Particulars of the outstanding options that had been
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Schemes at
31 December 2009 are as follows:
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MERTE D), VAW E M8Es TEF, M HE &
R Z EORR, AR RIOR B B AR A8k Y [ s b vt
#1 —B, R_FF=FSATH, AAFEER
9 B A7 3E 11,520,000 Fe A B B4 2 S BCHE . T —
TFEF A= F—H, 11,520,000 {73 A HE
RATHE, FARSRE 2 B I i M AR s ) 2 Hh 2
HECHEAR I T 08, RS R, T4+
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Period during

Number of

which the options Exercise underlying shares

remain exercisable price per under the option as at

Name of grantees after the date of grant share 20.6.2003 and 31.12.2010
MEZFFZAFEANAZTHR

I P TP 452 1 11 B2 ZER-RETZAZT—H

RN AP AT AR B AT A I P HE D e 2 A BRI 153 S AL
William Xia GUO (Notes 1 & 2) 10 years HK$0.32 7,200,000
2 other participants (Notes 1 & 2) 10 years HK$0.32 2,520,000
1 other participant (Note 3) 10 years HK$0.40 1,800,000
11,520,000

FRE(PFEE 1 2 2) 4 0.32 #5¢ 7,200,000
Wi HAth 2 B (3% 1 1% 2) F4E 0.32 50 2,520,000
— 24 HoAh 2 B (Y 3) +4F 0.40 ¥#70 1,800,000
11,520,000

Note 1: Options granted to each of them contain a vesting Mifst 1. #FERR JERER I 7 B e 4], IR, 15
schedule, pursuant to which may exercise up to 30% T EEZAE A T H = A — H BT EAZ R
of the underlying shares after 31 December 2003, THE A 30% 2 FERERE(TE M2 Z MR F), T2
(subject to Note 2), up to another 30 % of the un- ZEEPNFEA T H =A— H BT EANZ B
derlying shares after 31 December 2004 and the SRR 30% Z BERRE, Rt ENAE
balance after 31 December 2006. H=A—HETE ST ZIEHE,

Note 2: Each of the grantees has undertaken to the Stock Mzt 2: BRI OISR, b A E
Exchange that they will not exercise their options 12 AR, PR ETERIE B K P B %
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options Scheme H BRI R v 3 1 1 2 JBEE
within the first 12 months from the Listing Date.

Note 3: Options granted to an adviser contain a vesting PiEE3: BT B R 2 R I g g IR 1], IR, 1

schedule, pursuant to which may exercise up to 30
% of the underlying shares after 31 December 2002,
up to another 30 % of the underlying shares after
31 December 2003 and the balance after 31 De-
cember 2004. Each of the grantees has undertaken
to the Stock Exchange that they will not exercise
their options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Options Scheme within the first 6 months from the
Listing Date.

W A F AE A T = A BTN
B 30% Z HEHLHE, #—FEE=F1 "
= H BT A Z B Ho: 30% 2 Jf
S, R —FEEEf A =1 — A ELT
R ZIGRENE RN B 1l 2 R, 1
L B R B M P, B BT R B
R 2 BB I B A v B0 2 2 B

BEeamuEXARAAI25
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2. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 2. i Fse R 1)

ﬁ%¢”ﬁ%%%iggiiﬂﬁﬁ+£ ZEH
PSR, AN E RN — TR R R

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the sharehold-
ers of the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company
adopted a new share option scheme.

R TEBEFAEZA T H, DER A 354,042,000
AU Ry 2 B b, A T — A+ =+—
H, A 1,572,000y i HCRE ¥ A47(#, S 2,150,000
iy AR R 2 S I 0 52 L 2 B RO E B B ok
Mo MEF—FF+A=1+—H, ARREHEK
RERT IR 2 B R AT (BB EREE W0 T

As at 2 March 2005, options comprising a total of
4,042,000 underlying shares were granted. As at 31De-
cember 2010, the options outstanding are 1,572,000
and 2,150,000 options granted pursuant to this Share
Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed. Particu-
lars of the outstanding options which have been granted
under this Share Option Scheme as at 31 December
2010 are as follows:

Period during Number of

which the options Exercise underlying shares
remain exercisable price per under the option as at
Name of grantees after the date of grant share 2.3.2005 and 31.12.2010
MEFFRFE=HAHE
i FBEHE Y 452 1 H iR ZEF-FETA=T—H
RN AP AT HIR T AT AR I P HE D e 2 A B e 153 S I
William Xia GUO 10 years HK$0.52 360,000
Other Directors 10 years HK$0.52 720,000
Other participants 10 years HK$0.52 492,000
1,572,000
L +4F 0.52 #JC 360,000
Hih= g +4F 0.52 #Je 720,000
Hith 2% T4 0.52 #7t 492,000
1,572,000

3. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 3. e T A - 1

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the sharehold-
ers of the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company

adopted a new share option scheme.

As at 14 December 2005, options comprising a total
of 1,098,000 underlying shares were granted. As at 31
December 2010, the options outstanding are 619,200
and 810,000 options granted pursuant to this Share
Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed. Particu-
lars of the outstanding options which have been granted
under this Share Option Scheme as at 31 December

2010 are as follows:
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Period during Number of
which the options Exercise underlying shares
remain exercisable price per under the option as at

Name of grantees after the date of grant share 14.12.2005 and 31.12.2010
MEZEERFET A TIH R

I P R T 4% S M e “EF-FETHA=T—H

ZX PN TS R F A w] T AT A BIRR TR W e MR 5 e 2 AL Bl e 13 B EI
William Xia GUO 10 years HK$0.45 360,000
4 participants 10 years HK$0.45 259,200
619,200

HE T4 0.45 W70 360,000
4 Z B EE +4F 0.45 #Je 259,200
619,200

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the sharehold-
ers of the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company
adopted a new share option scheme.

As at 10 August 2006, options comprising a total of 4,
118,000 underlying shares were granted. As at 31 De-
cember 2010, the options outstanding are 2,590,200
and 950,400 options granted pursuant to this Share
Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed. Particu-

i e At

REA A FIRR —FF=FTA = HZHEH
PSR, AN E RN — TR i Rt

EZFSNAENHH, BRI A H4,118,000
JBORH BR e 00y < R IRCHE i — B — B+ A =+ —
H ., 4 2,590,200 {7 SEBCHE R RATHE, KA 950,400
Dy AR IR I HEE ) 2 L 2 S ABEHE L B B

RS H = H, A BRI
BB 2 1 AR AT S R R A0 T

lars of the outstanding options which have been granted
under this Share Option Scheme as at 31 December
2010 are as follows:

Period during Number of

which the options Exercise underlying shares

remain exercisable price per under the option as at

Name of grantees after the date of grant share 10.8.2006 and 31.12.2010
R F T NAENATH R

I P TP 452 1 1A% ZER-RETZAZT—H

RN AP AT EINIR T AT AT W e MRE 0 B 2 A B e 13 B EI
William Xia GUO 10 years HK$0.36 324,000
Other directors 10 years HK$0.36 792,000
Other participants 10 years HK$0.36 1,474,200
2,590,200

Ey-} +4F 0.36 T 324,000
HAt#F +4F 0.36 7T 792,000
Hfth 2 Hik +4 0.36 %0 1,474,200
2,590,200
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5. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 5. Wi e )
Pursuant to the written resolutions by the sharehold- RIEAATR A - EE=4FHH _+=H2 &M
ers of the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company R, ANATERAN—TE T R RE ST 31,
adopted a new share option scheme.
NTEELFELA TR, EREW L E3E7,568,000
As at 10 May 2007, options comprising a total of 7, REAH B A A 2 WG HE A — B —FBE+ T H=+—
568,000 underlying shares were granted. As at 31 De- H, A 6,449,800 {7 BERHE M R AT, A 762,800
cember 2010, the options outstanding are 6,449,880 1y AR S IR T B 52 ) 2 MR e B B3
and 762,800 options granted pursuant to this Share W_E—FE+H=1T—H, B BRI ERRES
Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed. Particu- I 2 AR T IR S IR .
lars of the outstanding options which have been granted
under this Share Option Scheme as at 31 December
2010 are as follows:
Period during Number of
which the options Exercise underlying shares
remain exercisable price per under the option as at
Name of grantees after the date of grant share 10.5.2007 and 31.12.2010
REEELFERLATHR
TR HE S 452 1 H iR ZER-FETZAZT—H
RN AP AT AEINIRR BT AR W e MR 25 e 2 A B e 13 B EI
William Xia GUO 10 years HK$0.625 966,000
Other directors 10 years HK$0.625 956,000
Other participants 10 years HK$0.625 4,527,800
6,449,800
R +4F 0.625 #JC 966,000
HAhEE +4F 0.625 #E T 956,000
Hihz g +4F 0.625 #IT 4,527,800
6,449,800
6. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 6. I T R s 3

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the sharehold-
ers of the Company on 25 March 2009, the Company

adopted a new share option scheme.

As at 7 April 2009, options comprising a total of
11,966,800 underlying shares were granted. As at
31 December 2010 the options outstanding are
11,966,800 and no options granted pursuant to this
Share Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed.
Particulars of the outstanding options which have
been granted under this Share Option Scheme as at
31 December 2010 are as follows:
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Period during

Number of

which the options Exercise underlying shares
remain exercisable price per under the option as at
Name of grantees after the date of grant share 7.4.2009 and 31.12.2010
ATEEIFEMALHR
I P TP 432 1 1A% ZER-RETZAZT—H
RN AT AT R ERAT MR I P HE D e 2 A BRI 53 S AL
William Xia GUO 10 years HK$0.435 360,000
Other directors 10 years HK$0.435 975,200
Other participants 10 years HK$0.435 10,631,600
11,966,800
Ey-} +4F 0.435 #Je 360,000
HAbFE S +4E 0.435 #J0 975,200
HAthz g +4E 0435 %0 10,631,600
11,966,800

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS Az 5

Details of the discloseable connected transactions during the
year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial state-

ments

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the busi-
ness of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered

into or subsisted during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2010, none of the Directors or the man-
agement shareholders of the Company and their respective
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any in-
terest in a business that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group.

BOARD PRACTICE AND PROCEDURES
Since the listing of the Company, the Company has complied

with Board Practices and Procedures as set out in Rules 5.46
to 5.68 of the GEM Listing Rules.

A N T 2 B AL B AR O A £ R R T 30,

0 A T T S A T LA T P 4 7]
AT L EEAA,

TR A

REF—FHEFZH=—H, AAFAZEFSEHE
JRCH J A0 45 45 B 2 B RN G 58 SRR SE A LT B F A e
T AL S A S ) S5 5 A 0T R A Rt S 1 S TR R
fEat,

TR

AnaE LA, —HES AR LTRSS 546 =
5.68 FHI 2 EHE WM LT,
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECU-
TIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each Independent Non-ex-
ecutive Directors an annual confirmation for independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Inde-
pendent Non-executive Directors have confirmed that they are

independent.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during
the year ended 31 December 2010.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group ac-
counted for approximately 36% of the Group’s sales. The larg-
est customer accounted for approximately 12% of the sales of
the Group.

Aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest

suppliers were less than 10% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders
which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital had any interest in the

five largest customers of the Group.
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares

on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as auditor of the Company
on 9 May 2011.On 9 May 2011, UHY Vocation HK CPA Lim-
ited (“UHY”) was appointed auditor of the Company. A reso-
lution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint UHY as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chairman
William Xia GUO

Beijing, the PRC, 20 June 2011
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a1 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES (1) SR
The Company applied the principles and fully com- AN TR AE A ZE M _E TR RN B 8% 15 Fr sl s B &
plied with the Code Provision as set out in Appendix 4T ST BT ST AR SO (T 2E IR B R ST
15 of the GEM Listing Rules (“CG Code”) save with HI D, & BA A mEE, 2A B 5 BT B4
certain deviations in respect of the roles of chairman Hzmm,
and chief executive officer.

(2) DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS ()  EHZEHFRLS
The Company has adopted the Company Code for Se- Ay T 28 R SE AR B TR B BT AR S, R AN BT
curities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers in BT NEF TR R S A TSR], MR BA A E]
compliance with the provisions that are set out in the M EEBERFSNH TILHEERE E B R BT
GEM Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for HEQN, A EEIE D AR, EEmER,
Directors’ dealings of securities since 29 June 2005. e E - E—-FE+_H=+—HIMEES
Specific enquiries have been made with all Directors A, —EHENFA TSRO E HE R,
and the Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Company Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2010.

A3) BOARD OF DIRECTORS 3) FEE

The overall governance structure of the Company is

set out below:

The Board
HEHEG

Chairman appointed by the board
HEFRGRELN
2 Executive Directors
AT
3 Non-Executive Directors
NAEATE S
3 Independent Non-Executive Directors

MBS ARTE S

Executive Directors

AAFREERHERIT

Audit Committdd

ATE HEEAE
William Xia GUO 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors
WE AL AR TE R
Maria Xuemei SONG Wang Hong Bo (Chairman)
KEM FALW(ER)
Paul CONTOMICHALOS
Wu Ming Yu
Bl

Senior Management

RAEBLE

Dr. Tarun GUPTA, Co-head of the Group
Business Development

Tarun GUPTARI:, 4R [ 36 B B TR BT A 124
Dr. Tom Tuo JIN, Joint Chief Technology Officer
S, BB
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Note:

(a) The Non-Executive Directors of the Company dur-
ing the year and up to the date of this report are:

FENG Tao
WU Xin
Nathan Xin ZHANG

(b) Apart from Nathan Xin ZHANG and Wang Hong
Bo, who do not have a service contract, each of the
Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for three years from 10 July 2003 (the
“Listing Date” ). Each of the Executive Directors
and Non-executive Directors was appointed as Di-
rector of the Company respectively subject to ter-
mination in certain circumstances as stipulated in

the relevant service contracts, if applicable.

On 11 July 2010, the service contract with each di-
rector other than Nathan Xin ZHANG and WANG

Hong Bo, expired and be renewed for one more year.

(c) Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meet-
ing has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compen-

sation (other than statutory compensation).

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Company is
collectively responsible for the oversight of the man-
agement of the business and affairs of the Group with

the objective of enhancing shareholders value.

The Board of the Company comprises a total of eight
Directors, with two Executive Directors, three Non-
executive Directors and three Independent Non-execu-
tive Directors. One-third of the Board is Independent
Non-executive Directors and one of them has appro-
priate professional qualifications. Reviews are made
regularly of the Board composition to ensure that it
has a balance of expertise, skills and experience ap-
propriate for the requirements of the business of the
Company. All Independent Non-executive Directors
meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance

with the terms of the guidelines.
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The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the
approval and monitoring of the Group’s overall strate-
gies and policies; approval of annual budgets and busi-
ness plans; evaluating the performance of the Group;
and oversight of management. One of the important
roles of the Chairman is to provide leadership to the
Board to ensure that the Board acts in the best inter-
ests of the Group. All Directors have been consulted
about any matters proposed for inclusion in the agenda.
With the support of Executive Directors and the Com-
pany Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and receives adequate and reliable informa-

tion in a timely manner.

Regular Board meetings of the year are scheduled in
advance to give all Directors an opportunity to attend.
Four regular Board meetings at approximately quar-
terly intervals have been scheduled for 2010. The Di-
rectors can attend meetings in persons or through other
means of electronic communication in accordance with

the Company’s Articles of Association.

Board papers are circulated not less than seven days
before the Board meetings to enable the Directors to
make informed decisions on matters to be raised at the
Board meetings. The Company Secretary and the
Qualified Accountant shall attend all regular Board
meetings to advise on corporate governance, statutory
compliance, accounting and financial matters when
necessary. Directors shall have full access to informa-
tion on the Group and are able to obtain independent
professional advice whenever deemed necessary by the
Directors. The Company Secretary assists the Chair-
man in establishing the meeting agenda, and each Di-
rector may request inclusion of items in the agenda.
Minutes of the board meetings are kept by the Com-
pany Secretary and are open for inspection by

Directors.
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During the twelve months ended 31 December 2010,
the Board met and held four meetings in January,
March, May, and August 2010. The attendance records
of the aforementioned four Board meetings are set out

below:
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BHELZ-FFT A= —HILT @A, E
HEYR_E-FF A = A BT
POk, LR TR S Gk R R g
LU

Attendance of individual directors at
board meetings during the year
AR PR B8 S o o ara U R

Attendance no. Attendance rate

R 8 s 3%
Executive Director HWATESH
William Xia GUO HE 4/4 100%
Maria Xuemei SONG KEH 4/4 100%
Non-executive Directors T ES
FENG Tao B 4/4 100%
WU Xin TR 4/4 100%
Nathan Xin ZHANG IRIR 4/4 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors YsrEETE S
WANG Hong Bo FAW 4/4 100%
Paul CONTOMICHALOS Paul CONTOMICHALOS 4/4 100%
WU Ming Yu 53 HH Hy 4/4 100%
(4) CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF- 4)  ERRATE AR
FICER
Chairman of the Board is responsible for the leader- EHGg LR ATHEETEREG LA HAR0EE, A

ship and effective running of the Board, and ensures
that all keys and appropriate issues are discussed by

the Board in a timely and constructive manner.

However, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
has not yet been appointed. Currently, the day-to-day
management of the Company’s business is handled by
the executive directors and senior management, who
take the responsibility to run the Group’s business and
to implement the Group’s strategy so as to achieve the

overall commercial objectives of the Company.

TR T Sy ELR SO B A B ol

R
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises
the Chairman of the Board Mr. William Xia GUO, a
Non-executive Director Mr. FENG Tao and an Inde-
pendent Non-executive Director Mr. Paul
CONTOMICHALOS. Mr. William Xia GUO is the

chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include making recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of Directors and senior management and
reviewing the specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors and senior management by refer-
ence to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, nomination of Directors is determined by
the Board with approvals by the shareholders in the

general meeting.
AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The coming annual general meeting should approve
the appointment of UHY Vocation HK CPA Limited
as the auditors of the Group and that the Board is and

be hereby authorized to fix auditors’ remuneration.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with the GEM Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee are
to review the Company’s annual reports and accounts,
half-yearly reports and quarterly reports and internal
control system of the Group and provide advice and
comments to the Board. The audit committee has three
members comprising the three Independent Non-ex-
ecutive Directors, Mr. WANG Hong Bo, Mr. Paul
CONTOMICHALOS and Mr. WU Ming Yu. Mr.
WANG Hong Bo is the chairman of the audit

committee.
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The audit committee holds meetings on quarterly basis.
During the twelve months ended 31 December 2010,
the audit committee held four meetings and reviewed
the Group’s annual report, quarterly and interim finan-
cial results. The attendance records of the aforemen-

tioned four audit committee meetings are set out below:
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FRERGRFRET IR K BE-E-FH+
AT HIETEEA, wRE R R RTINR
ik, I AP AR B AR, T
BT, LRI E L B g gk 2 R RC s
.

Attendance of member at audit
committee meetings during the year

ENESEE BERRZ IES
Attendance no. Attendance rate
Members [DR=]
WANG Hong Bo FALIE 4/4 100%
Paul CONTOMICHALOS Paul CONTOMICHALOS 4/4 100%
WU Ming Yu 3 HH Fr 4/4 100%
9) DIRECTORS’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF 9) FHE T MRS ARMEREZ ST
THEIR RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINAN-
CIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge that they take full respon- EETH, NEEEE T HE,
sibility in the preparation of the financial statements.
(10) INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGE- (10) Py SRS 42 A i 45 1

MENT

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group
has a sound and effective internal control system. The
Group is committed to the identification, monitoring
and management of risks associated with its business
activities and has implemented a practical and effec-
tive control system which includes a defined manage-
ment structure with limits of authority, a sound cash
management system and periodic review of the Group’s
operation and performance by the Audit Committee
and the Board. The internal control system is reviewed
on an ongoing basis by the Board to ensure it is
effective. The Board is satisfied that, based on infor-
mation furnished to it and on its own observations, the
present internal controls of the Group are satisfactory.
The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control and is of the view that
the system of internal control adopted for the year
ended 31 December 2010 is sound and effective. The
Group does not have an internal audit function and the
Board is of the view that there is currently no need for
the Group to have this function.

EHGEFRRERAEER NN REE R SR S
Ao AEBE TS B PSR A B
Z R, i L — S BT AT 2 A R B
RH, WARTEM e R A, RIiFZ Bl
EHAL, A hEEZ A G RSN E
W 2 AU TR NI B R ST R
FRHEEAT IR R A  HE AR e L R
ZERBAG B, HALE B Z NARE I
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RREE T -FBE T A= HIMEERAZ
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3/F., Malaysia Building, 50 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED

BRI 5
AUDITOR’S REPORT

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

B AR AR AR
(7 bR 2 B Bk b 3 2 A PR 2 \))
A8 B U 78 S A% B R

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Venturepharm Laboratories Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 40 to 118 which comprise the consolidated and the
Company’s statement of financial position as at 31 December
2010, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLI-
DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the prepara-
tion of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Pub-
lic Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors’ determine is nec-
essary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial state-
ments that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consoli-
dated financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any

other person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Stan-
dards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certi-
fied Public Accountants. Those standards require that we com-
ply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evi-
dence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s in-
ternal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropri-
ateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evalu-
ating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi-

cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
the Group as at 31 December 2010 and of the Group’s loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

UHY VOCATION HK CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

YUEN SHU TONG,

Auditor,

Practising Certificate Number P02140

Hong Kong, 20 June 2011
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
WEZZE-FH T A ST —HIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

Year ended 31 December
WET_H=1T—HIEE

2010 2009

TR R CEZNE

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

P ANR#ETIT NER¥ETIT

Revenue ==l PN 5 37,687 47,308

Cost of sales (=% iV N (16,317) (20,674)

Gross profit EH] 21,370 26,634

Other income HABYZ A 20 22,556 12,193

Administrative expenses EPE A (62,592) (17,304)

Loss on revaluation of convertible bonds ARG S5 E AL R (22,193) (9.,996)

Finance costs - net BB — A 21 (14,563) (5.217)

(Loss)/profit before tax AL ai Ui 18)/ F)iHE (55,422) 6,310

Income tax REi 24 (1,838) 77)

Total comprehensive income for the year ASAE B 4 i Wi 3 A % (57,260) 6,033
Attributable to: TEAL .

Owners of the parent BT RS 25 (56,928) 6,276

Non-controlling interests B HIRERS (332) (243)

(57,260) 6,033

Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share  J:A KR (0ER) 2H 26 (15.66)cents 1.73cents

The notes on pages 45 to 116 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

BEPR 45 2 116 H P RER AR G B iR AL .
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Wo_E—FFE+ZH=1—H
As at 31 December 2010

2010 4 J # i
ANNUAL REPORT

As at 31 December

wr+—_H=1+—H
2010 2009
ZF T BRI
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Ff=E PN YN
ASSETS B PE
Non-current assets e B & pE
Property, plant and equipment L/ YN 6 16,738 9,668
New drugs technology B T 7 - 9,374
Deferred tax assets I AL TE & PE 19 5,340 7,720
22,078 26,762
Current assets & e
Work-in-progress TERE T 10 58,849 60,650
Trade receivables TEICHR R 11 10,347 15,223
Prepayments and other receivables FEAT IR 5% S o Ath M Wk 12 41,828 34,998
Financial assets at fair value through N A EEE R IE R 13 60,138 58,465
profit or loss FLIR Z Al e
Cash and cash equivalents W4 LI E5EY 14 6,910 14,087
178,072 183,423
Total assets HE e 200,150 210,185
EQUITY JBe AE 2
Capital and reserves attributable to BEL B 1% R MEAG #E 2
owners of the parent
Ordinary shares R A 15 38,469 38,469
Reserves s 16 16,811 73,058
55,280 111,527
Non-controlling interests JEfhIRE R 1,045 1,377
Total equity JBe SR 2 T 56,325 112,904
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities B &
Borrowings &K 18 108,005 78,333
Current liabilities g
Other payables and accruals oAb FEAT 57 % A E: T 17 31,153 13,368
Receipt in advance TEMCESK 3,221 3,582
Income tax liabilities TEAT R TE 1,446 1,998
35,820 18,948
Total liabilities AfEE 143,825 97,281
Total equity and liabilities e bz I B A 200,150 210,185
Net current assets T R A 142,252 164 475
Total assets less current liabilities 3% PE Y T Bh B R 164,330 191,237

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 June 2011:

EHRFOR _F——F/NA 1 B S T 3%

Mr. William Xia GUO
FE ek
Director

B

Dr. Maria Xuemei SONG
KRGS

Director

B

The notes on pages 45 to 116 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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] 2010 4 JiF & AR T

- I
u ANNUAL REPORT STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
WFE-BETH A+ —H
As at 31 December 2010
As at 31 December
wT_H=+—H
2010 2009
R ZEREBAFE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i S UNGHL & o N 2TH
ASSETS e
Non-current assets & P
Investments in subsidiaries T B AT 2 G 8 79,973 78,496
Current assets B
Prepayments and other receivables FEAT R IR K Fo A E SR 7,309 1,238
Financial assets at fair value through N AEEERIE R 13 60,138 58,465
profit or loss FOHR Z 4 FE
Cash and cash equivalents 4 K B 4428 14 53 522
67,500 60,225
Total assets oy 147,473 138,721
EQUITY B f 5 R s
Capital and reserves attributable to B2 a) e B REAG HE 2
owners of the parent
Ordinary shares A 15 38,469 38,469
Reserves el ftg 16 (16,628) 14,691
Total equity TR B AR 21,841 53,160
LIABILITIES Ak it By £ 15
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings L 18 108,005 78,333
Current liabilities TEh AR
Other payables and accruals oA FEAST 5 % A2 17 17,627 7,228
Total liabilities AEAE 125,632 85,561
Total equity and liabilities A SR R AEAE 147,473 138,721
Net current assets TEBE P HE 49,873 52,997
Total assets less current liabilities L PR B AR 129,846 131,493

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 June 2011:
HEGON T ——FNHA T H A ST 5%

Mr. William Xia GUO Dr. Maria Xuemei SONG

E e REMHE L
Director Director
HH HH

The notes on pages 45 to 116 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

BEPR 45 2 116 H P RER & G I B iR AL S .
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Ertr il an BB
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
WEZE-FE+TAZF—HIEE

2010 4 J # i
ANNUAL REPORT

For the year ended 31 December 2010

Attributable to owners of the parent

AR R
Share- Statutory Retained
based enterprise earnings/ Non-
Share payment Special Capital Statutory expansion  (accumulated controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve fund loss) Total interests equity
ARG S WERE  BEEM/ g
Bk ZEaRE RARGE ERRE  REAE BERES (BWED fAt RSN A
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARETT ARWTE ARWTE AREKTT ARWTE ARKTT ARETT ARETT  ARETT
At 1 January 2009 RoEENE 38407 2,766 6,039 1,186 3,803 6,986 45,549 104,736 1,620 106,356
-
Total comprehensive ARAERE AT 6,276 6,276 (243) 6,033
income for the year
Transactions with owners SUFTA# RS
Employee share option benefits (BB B A 21 21 m
Share premium for the IR 226 226 226
exercise of share options
Issuance of ordinary shares PO B s e iy 62 62 62
pursuant to the exercise of
share options
Exercise of share options Tttt () . 47
Total transactions with owners ST #0055 & it 62 180 - 273 515 515
At 31 December 2009 REFFAELT A 38,469 2,946 6039 1459 3,803 6,986 51,825 111527 1377 112,904
and 1 January 2010 “PHRRZ%
—%E—-A—H
Total comprehensive income ASERE Al E: (56,928) (56,928) (332 (57,260
for the year
Transactions with owners AFHHILS
Employee share option benefits 1B B R RERR A 681 681 681
Total transactions with owners ST #1055 & it 681 681 681
At 31 December 2010 R_F—-FH+ZH 38469 3,627 6,039 1459 3,803 6,986 (5,103) 55,280 1,045 56,325
=t—H

The notes on pages 45 to 116 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

BB 45 22 116 H Pk Rfn & B iR LS
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ANNUAL REPORT CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HE-E-FBF+_H =+ HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

Year ended 31 December

BETHA=1T—HIL4E

2010 2009
TR R “EZNAF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
PR ARHEETIT ANRH#TIT
Cash flows from operating activities KERB B L=
Cash generated from operations ROBTRB e 2 B4 27 3,677 10,030
Interest paid R (4,382) (3,799)
Income tax paid FTASBLST ® -
Net cash (used in)/generated from ROBTRB) () (714) 6,231
operating activities FEAE 2 Bl AT AR
Cash flows from investing activities BEEH B L=
Purchase of property, plant and equipment TEEW3E | R S A 6 (10,669) (582)
Dividends received JEACA 99 133
Payments for the acquisition of financial [ E s EEE AR (166,763) (20,794)
assets at fair value through profit or loss e IR Z & Rl&
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE—FE AT Z WA 9 -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HEHN R EEBRER 165,196 21,016
at fair value through profit or loss AR & EE 2 A
Proceeds from disposal of new drugs BT EER AT Z A 5,400 -
technology
Interest received W AE 265 1,084
Net cash (used in)/generated from POEIRE (R FEEAEZ (6,463) 857
investing activities BT
Cash flows from financing activities EREHH L=
Proceeds from issuance of new shares TR EE S 4 - 288
Net cash generated from financing activities 2% B 2 A 2 Bl 4 4 - 288
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and H 4 KB4 S8 i (7,177) 7,376
cash equivalents Q) 88 m
Cash and cash equivalents at the HG BB E Y 14 14,087 6,711
beginning of the year AR ERER
Cash and cash equivalents at the end Bl & R BL a5 14 6,910 14,087
of the year AR BREH

The notes on pages 45 to 116 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

W 45 25 116 B EE R & B R AR 0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEZ 4T _A=1T—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 4 i # i
ANNUAL REPORT

GENERAL INFORMATION

Venturepharm Laboratories Limited (the “Company”)
is a public listed company incorporated in the Cay-
man Islands on 21 May 2002 as an exempted com-
pany with limited liability under the Companies Law
(2002 Revision) of the Cayman Islands. The address
of its registered office is Scotia Centre, 4" Floor, PO
Box 2804, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman
Islands, and its principal place of business is disclosed
in “Corporate Information” of the annual report. The
Company has its shares listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are
set out in note & to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Renminbi (“RMB’000”) which
is the functional currency of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2010 were approved for issue by
the Board of Directors on 20 June 2011.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the prepa-
ration of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

A EIE R

EEPEEEARA T AATE DR—H AR L,
#BA:§§:$£H “H—HREE SRS AT

CERE ARG BOLE R S8 R L R R
ﬁFE AN, ok i aEEs g Hbdik 5% Scotia Centre,
4"Floor, PO Box 2804, George Town, Grand, Cayman,
Cayman Islands, 1ijH: == % 3E B Y 55 R AR 4F 3
[AEER] N, HR BB G o A R
A AL e ) B

RAEIZ EEEH AR, LB AT £2
B ORI AR B HR I 8,

REG B HERAAR A REE A RKE T T

BEE-FHET A= HIEFEZ ARG
IR IES Eﬁ‘\_%~~$/\ﬁ T HEERERE
SLE:R

HEETHEORM R

B L A5 o U R T ) B B IR S

T BAABIES, ZEBOREHUE R TE 2
WAL

BEamiEXEARAA45
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2010 4 f # &
ANNUAL REPORT

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Account-
ing Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). The consolidated financial statements
also include the applicable disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been pre-
pared under the historical cost convention except that,
as disclosed in the accounting policies below, finan-
cial assets at fair value through profit or loss and de-

rivative financial instruments are stated at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of cer-
tain critical accounting estimates. It also requires man-
agement to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are signifi-
cant to the consolidated financial statements, are dis-

closed in Note 4.

46 | VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED

2.1

bR M BB It

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WEZZE-FH T A ST —HIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEZ 4T _A=1T—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

21

(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Impact of new and revised Standards and Interpreta-

tions

In the current year, the Group has applied the follow-
ing new and revised Standards and Interpretations is-
sued by the HKICPA, the adoption of these new and
revised standards and interpretations has had no mate-

rial effect on these financial statements:

HKFRSs Improvement to HKFRS issued in
(Amendments) 2010 in relation to amendments
to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements
HKFRSs Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of
(Amendments)  improvements to HKFRSs 2008
HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs 2009
(Amendments)
HKFRS 1 Additional Exemptions for First-
(Amendment) time Adopters
HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of HKFRSs
(Revised)
HKFRS 2 Group Cash-settled Share-based
(Amendment) Payment Transactions
HKEFRS 3 Business Combinations
(Revised)
HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
(Revised) Financial Statements
HKAS 39 Eligible Hedged Items
(Amendment)
HKIFRIC) Distribution of Non-cash Assets to
-Int 17 Owners
HK-Int 4 Determination of Length of Lease
(Amendments)  Term in respect of Hong Kong
Land Leases
HK-Int 5 Presentation of Financial

Statements - Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand

Clause

2.1

(a)
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ANNUAL REPORT
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2010 4 f # &
ANNUAL REPORT

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Impact of Standards and Interpretations issued but not

yet effective

The Group has not applied the following new and re-
vised Standards and Interpretations that have been is-
sued but are not yet effective in these consolidated fi-

nancial statements.

HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs issued
(Amendment) in 2010°

HKFRS 1 Limited Exemption from
(Amendment)  Comparative HKFRS 7 Disclosures

for First-time Adopters?

HKFRS 1 Severe Hyperinflation and

(Amendment) Removal of Fixed Dates for
First-time Adopters®

HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Transfers of Financial
(Amendments)  Assets’

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

HKAS 12 Deferred Tax : Recovery of
(Amendment) Underlying Assets®

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures*
(Revised)

HKAS 32 Presentation - Classification of
(Amendment) Right Issues'

HKIFRIC) Prepayments of a Minimum
-Int 14 Funding Requirment*
(Amendment)

HKJIFRIC)- Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
Int 19 with Equity Instruments?

48 | VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WEZZE-FH T A ST —HIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WEZEZE-FE T A= —HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

21

(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Impact of Standards and Interpretations issued but not

yet effective (Continued)

The Group has not applied the following new and re-
vised Standards and Interpretations that have been is-
sued but are not yet effective in these consolidated fi-

nancial statements. (Continued)

In May 2009, the HKICPA issued Improvements to
HKFRSs* which set out amendments to HKFRSs, pri-
marily with a view to removing inconsistencies and
clarifying wording. The Group adopted the amend-
ments to HKFRSs from 1 January 2010. There are sepa-
rate transitional provisions for each standard. While
the adoption of some of them may result in changes in
accounting policy, none of these amendments are ex-

pected to have a material financial impact on the Group.

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 February 2010

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2010
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 July 2010 and 1 January 2011, as appropriate

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2011

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2011

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2012

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013

* Improvements to HKFRSs contain amendments to
HKFRS 2, HKFRS 5, HKFRS 8, HKAS 1, HKAS 7,
HKAS 17, HKAS 18, HKAS 36, HKAS 38, HKAS
39, HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 and HK(IFRIC) - Int 16.
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2010 4 f # &
ANNUAL REPORT

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The con-
solidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the functional and pre-

sentation currency of the Group and the Company.
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevail-
ing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transac-
tions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
statement of comprehensive income within ‘finance

costs - net’.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities de-
nominated in foreign currency classified as available
for sale are analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the
security and other changes in the carrying amount of
the security. Translation differences related to changes
in amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and
other changes in carrying amount are recognised in

other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial as-
sets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differ-
ences on non-monetary financial assets, such as equi-
ties classified as available for sale, are included in other

comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WEZEZE-FE T A= —HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

23

(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the fi-
nancial statements of the Company and all of its sub-

sidiaries made up to 31 December 2010.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating poli-
cies generally accompanying a shareholding of more
than one half of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently ex-
ercisable or convertible are considered when assess-
ing whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group, other
than the common control combinations. The consider-
ation transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is
the fair value of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value
of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-
by acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity in-
terest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifi-
able net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this
is less than the fair value of the net assets of the sub-
sidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Consolidation (Continued)
Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Ac-
counting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary in the consolidated financial state-
ments to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less pro-
vision for impairment losses (Note 2.5). The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the

basis of dividends received and receivable.
Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling inter-
est as transactions with equity owners of the Group. For
purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference
between any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsid-
iary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposal to

non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceased to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value, with the change in carry-
ing amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value
is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of sub-
sequently accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, jointly controlled entities, or financial assets.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehen-

sive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is related, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expen-
diture that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items. Cost may also includes transfers from eq-
uity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges
of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and

equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future eco-
nomic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehen-
sive income during the financial period in which they

are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is cal-
culated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs or revalued amounts to their residual values over

their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements 5 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
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The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immedi-
ately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount
(Note 2.5).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by com-
paring the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised within ‘other income’ in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. When revalued
assets are sold, the amounts included in other reserves

are transferred to retained earnings.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and non-

financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet
available for use are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circum-
stances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are sepa-
rately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the

impairment at each reporting date.
Financial assets
Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the follow-
ing categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale. The classifica-
tion depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determines the clas-

sification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A fi-
nancial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category

are classified as current assets.
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26.1

262

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification (Continued)

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative fi-
nancial assets with fixed or determinable pay-
ments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for
maturities greater than 12 months after the re-
porting date. These are classified as non-cur-
rent assets. The Group’s loans and receivables
comprised ‘trade receivables’, ‘prepayments
and other receivables’ and ‘cash and cash
equivalents’ in the statement of financial posi-
tion (Notes 2.8 and 2.9).

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-deriva-
tives that are either designated in this category or
not classified in any of the other categories. They
are included in non-current assets unless man-
agement intends to dispose of the investment
within 12 months of the reporting date.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date - the date on which the Group
commiits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been trans-
ferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale fi-
nancial assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. e ORI (4
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6  Financial assets (Continued) 26 AR (4

2.6.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued) 262 HESMEER(AE)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss’ category are presented in the consolidated state-
ment of comprehensive income in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income when

the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-mon-
etary securities classified as available-for-sale are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

Interests on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as part of other income. Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in the consoli-
dated statement of comprehensive income as part of
other income when the Group’s right to receive pay-
ments is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on
current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is
not active (and for unlisted securities), the Group es-
tablished fair value by using valuation techniques.
These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are sub-
stantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and
option pricing models, making maximum use of mar-
ket inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-

specific inputs.
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2.

2.6

2.63

2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial as-
set or group of financial assets are impaired. In the case
of equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a sig-
nificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the se-
curities below its cost is considered as an indicator that
in determining whether the securities are impaired. If
any such evidence exists, the cumulative loss (measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that fi-
nancial asset previously recognised in profit or loss) is
removed from equity and recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehen-
sive income on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Impairment testing of trade and other receiv-
ables is described in (Note 2.8).

Work-in-progress

Work-in-progress is stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, cost of development
including costs that have been incurred for the provi-
sion of pharmaceutical application, registration and
testing services, is calculated using the first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the esti-
mated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale.

Where the outcome of a pharmaceutical development
and clinical research contract or service can be esti-
mated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the reporting date, as measured by the pro-
portion that contract costs incurred for work performed
to date bear to the total contract costs or the propor-
tion that contract revenue billed or recognised for work
performed to date bear to the total contract sums,
whichever is the lower, except where this would not

be representative of the stage of completion.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Work-in-progress (Continued)

Where the outcome of a contract or service cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to
the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable
that they will be recoverable. Contract costs are
recognised as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred.

When it is probable that the total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is

recognised as an expense immediately.
Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordi-
nary course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are pre-
sented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables is established when there is objec-
tive evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators that the receiv-
able is impaired. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, dis-
counted at the original effective interest rate. The car-
rying amount of the assets is reduced through the use
of an allowance account, and the amount of loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of compre-
hensive income within ‘administrative expenses’.
When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for receivables. Subse-
quent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against ‘administrative expenses’ in the con-

solidated statement of comprehensive income.
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29

2.10

2.11

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid in-
vestments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of gener-
ally within three months when acquired, less bank over-
drafts which are repayable on demand and form an

integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in

nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Other payables and accruals are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Conversion options that are not settled by the exchange
of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of equity instruments are recognised
as financial instruments carried at fair value through

profit or loss.

On initial recognition, the convertible bonds with the
derivatives component as a whole are designated as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
The entire convertible bonds are initially recognised
at fair value on the date of issue and are subsequently
measured at fair value until extinguished on conver-
sion or redemption. Changes in the fair value of the
entire convertible bonds are recognised in the state-
ment of comprehensive income as they arise. Interest
on convertible bonds designated as financial liabili-
ties at fair value through profit or loss is included in

the fair value gain or loss for that period.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the is-
sue of the convertible bonds designated as financial li-
abilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in the statement of comprehensive income.
Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated state-
ment of comprehensive income, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehen-
sive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date in the countries where the Company and
its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which appli-
cable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis

of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liabil-
ity in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither ac-
counting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting
date and are expected to apply when the related de-
ferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred in-

come tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences

can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differ-
ences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary dif-
ference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset cur-
rent tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a

net basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Employee benefits
Pension obligations

The Group participates in various defined contribu-
tion retirement benefit schemes. A defined contribu-
tion plan is a retirement benefit scheme under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity. The schemes are generally funded through pay-
ments to government authorities or trustee-adminis-
tered funds. The Group pays contributions on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contribution for post-retirement benefits beyond these
fixed contributions. The contributions are recognised
as employment costs when they are due. Prepaid con-
tributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that
a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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2.14

(©)

2.15

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based com-
pensation plan. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be ex-
pensed over the vesting period is determined by refer-
ence to the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions. Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to vest.
At each reporting date, the entity revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to vest based
on the non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any,
in the statement of comprehensive income with a cor-

responding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and capital reserve when the options are

exercised.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses. Provision for
an onerous contract is recognised when the unavoid-
able costs of meeting the obligations under the con-
tract exceed the economic benefits expected to be
received. The unavoidable costs under a contract re-
flect the least net cost of existing from the contract,
which is the lower of the cost fulfilling the contract
and any compensation or penalties arising from fail-

ure to fulfil the contract.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provisions (Continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settle-
ment is determined by considering the class of obliga-
tions as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item

included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the ex-
penditures expected to be required to settle the obliga-
tion using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provi-
sion due to passage of time is recognised as interest

expense.
Revenues

Revenues from transfer of new drug development and
formulation data are recognised upon transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the compound and data are deliv-

ered to customers.

Revenues from contracted research and development,
pharmaceutical application, registration and testing
services are recognised to the extent of the milestone
payments earned in accordance with the applicable
performance requirements and contractual terms and,
where appropriate, as the related costs are incurred.
Payments received that are related to future perfor-
mance are deferred and recorded as revenues as they
are earned over the specified future performance

periods.

Subject to the terms as stated in the technology trans-
fer agreements and the buyers’ success in
commercialisation of the products to which the tech-
nology transferred is applied, the Group may receive
additional royalty income or profit sharing income in
the future. Should there be any royalty income or shar-
ing of profit, they will be recognised when the right to

receive the income is established.
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2.16

2.17

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenues (Continued)

Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

Royalty income on drugs produced by third parties
using the Group’s drug technology is recognised when

the right to receive is established.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding

and at the interest rate applicable.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to re-

ceive payment is established.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensa-
tion for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable, which is when the refund is approved by

the relevant government authorities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

New drugs technology development costs

Expenditure on research activities on new drug tech-
nology is recognised as an expense in the period in

which it is incurred.

An internally-generated asset arising from new drug
technology development expenditure is recognised
only if it is anticipated that the development costs in-
curred on a clearly-defined project will be recovered
through future commercial activity. The resultant as-
set is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful
life. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can
be recognised, new drug technology development ex-
penditure is recognised as an expense in the period in

which it is incurred.
Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the statement of comprehen-
sive income on a straight-line basis over the period of

the lease.
Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity hold-
ers is recognised as a liability in the financial state-
ments in the period in which the dividends are approved
by the Company’s equity holders or directors, where
appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WEZEZE-FE T A= —HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

3.1

(a)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of finan-
cial risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquid-
ity risk. The Group’s overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the

Group’s financial performance.

Market risk

@) Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
arising from various currency exposures, pri-
marily with respect to Hong Kong Dollars
(“HKD”), United States Dollars (“USD”) and
Swiss Franc (“CHF”). Foreign exchange risk
arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities. In addition,
the conversion of RMB into foreign currencies
is subject to the rules and regulations of for-
eign exchange control promulgated by the PRC

Government.

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with
most of the transactions denominated and
settled in RMB. Foreign exchange risk also
arises from certain financial assets and con-
vertible bonds which are denominated in HKD,
USD and CHF. The Group currently does not

hedge its foreign exchange exposure.

At 31 December 2010, if HKD, USD or CHF
had weakened/strengthened by 1% against
Renminbi with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit or loss for the year
would have been RMB1,759,368 (2009:
RMB1,367,778) higher/lower.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Interest rate risks

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily
from interest bearing borrowings. The Group’s
interest bearing borrowings are issued at fixed
rates and exposed to fair value interest rate risk.
The details of the Group’s interest borrowings

are disclosed in Note 18.

Price risks

The Group is exposed to securities price risk
because investments held by the Group are
classified in the consolidated statement of fi-
nancial position at fair value through profit or
loss. The Group has not mitigated its price risk
arising from investments in securities finan-

cial assets.

For the Group’s investments that are publicly
traded, the fair value is determined with refer-
ence to quoted market prices. For the Group’s
investments that are not publicly traded, the
Group uses its judgement to select a variety of
methods and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the re-
porting date.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 SRS Jal B i B (4
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BA RS SR B (45)

(a)  Market risk (Continued) (a) T A (4
(iii)  Price risks (Continued) 3. {E A% R PR (AR

At 31 December 2010, if the market prices of AR H = IR E
& LR T B 1A R B AR AN, AR

B A B R A AT 52 8 -

these securities financial assets had increased/
decreased by 1% with all other variables held
constant, Group’s post-tax loss for the year
ended would have been changed as follows:

2010 2009
R AR “ETNE
RMB’000 RMB’000
NG ST YN 2T
Post-tax loss (2009: profit) B BR(CEEILE:FY)
increase/(decrease) AT /(D)
- Market prices increased by 1% — B L 1% 557 384
- Market prices decreased by 1% — T8 T 1% (557) (384)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from trade receivables and bank
balances.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade

receivables.

For the sales of products to third party customers, there
is a concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables as the largest five customers contribute
around 64% (2009: 45%) of the balance. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that credit is only granted
to customers with an appropriate credit history and a
good reputation. The exposure to credit risk is closely

monitored on an ongoing basis.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings as-
signed by international credit rating agencies.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented

by the carrying amount of each financial asset.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 Toh 25 A b B4

(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BA RS JR b (45)

(¢)  Liquidity risk (©  JEHERDEA)
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintain- PR B R R P R T R B 4 MR AT A
ing sufficient cash and bank balances. The liquidity of K, AREFRE T ENB A AN EREEEZH
the Group is adequately managed and monitored by B, EREEEANFEEE R E R

maintaining sufficient cash, which is available to meet
its continuous operational needs. In the opinion of the
directors, the Group does not have any significant li-

quidity risk.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabili- TR HE AR FRE, %20
ties into relevant maturity groupings based on the re- HoaAEmEma s, WgEsEnaRIEIrsl
maining period at the reporting date to the contractual B4,

maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are

the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Group AL
At 31 December 2010
WoE—-FEFZAZT—H
Less than Between 1 Between 2
1 year and 2 years and 5 years Total
DR AR 124 2-54F aat

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFIL  ARETFIX ARETFIL  ARETIT

Borrowings EEd - 108,005 - 108,005
Other payables and accruals oAt A s S AN B 31,153 - - 31,153

At 31 December 2009
WEERETH=1—H

Less than Between 1 Between 2

1 year and 2 years and 5 years Total
DI 1A 124 2-54 Frit
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTIE  AR¥TET ARWTT  AR¥TT

Borrowings [ - - 78,333 78,333
Other payables and accruals At A s S AN B 13,368 - - 13,368
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 T 265 TR 4 B (4)
(CONTINUED)
31 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 A5 Ja b (48)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) TE R (4)
Company AR
At 31 December 2010
RoR-RETH=1—H
Less than Between 1 Between 2
1 year and 2 years and 5 years Total
DR AR 1-2 4 2-5 4 At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NRETIE AT AREFIE ARETFIT
Borrowings fE2 - 108,005 - 108,005
Other payables and accruals oA A 3 8 AN 17,627 - - 17,627
At 31 December 2009
REZFEZNFETZA=Z+—H
Less than Between 1 Between 2
1 year and 2 years and 5 years Total
DA AR 124 2-54F At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#ETT AR®TT AR¥ETT AR¥®TI
Borrowings fErk - - 78,333 78,333
Other payables and accruals A A 5 R A 7,228 - - 7228
32  Capital risk management 32 EAEBAEM

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns to the shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders. The Group’s over-

all strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group represents equity
attributable to owners of the parent, comprising issued

share capital and retained earnings.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to the
shareholder or issue new shares.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 A5 DA B 4% PR 48
(CONTINUED)
3.3 Fair value estimation 33 AAEEME
The table below analyses financial instruments carried TREAEES T A REEAIR S T, A~
at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels [ i =R AR .
have been defined as follows:
- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets - [ 45 7 P Bl B 1 IR T 3 ) S A A 485
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1). (1),
- Inputs other than quoted prices included within - [ B NS AR SR A AN, AR R
level 1 that are observable for the asset or CEIME ) sk T 322 CBR BB RS ) 2 30 B E
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or in- W& el BB (EER 2),
directly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).
- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based - AEAR R AT LTI SO 1Y) i P B A AR AR (R
on observable market data (that is, unobserv- P B A (B2 4 3),
able inputs) (level 3).
The following table presents the Group’s assets and TRERAERR - E—BFE+H=1T—HUAL
liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 Decem- FMEEFEREERAE,
ber 2010.
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
401 2 M3 HsEr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NN T NI AREEFIT AREETIT
Assets ¥ e
Financial assets at fair value N REEB BB
through profit or loss TRERZ SRl e
- Foreign currency bond funds — MRS 4,433 - - 4,433
- Shares — B 55,705 - - 55,705
Total assets G pEHAE 60,138 - - 60,138

72 | VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WEZEZE-FE T A= —HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 4 i # i
ANNUAL REPORT

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 T 265 TR 4 B (4)
(CONTINUED)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 ARfEEMNEE)
The following table presents the Group’s assets and TERAERFE RN - EENFET+HA=T—HUAL
liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 Decem- SAEEFTEREFE A,
ber 2009.
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
21 22 ESLE fast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRHEFIT NG T AREEFIT AR
Assets B
Financial assets at fair value s REEBRER
through profit or loss TR ARG e
- Foreign currency bond funds —hisEs R4 8,800 - - 8,800
- Investment funds -REES 7,838 - - 7,838
- Bond — &% - - 3414 3414
- Shares — e 38,413 - - 38413
Total assets %R 55,051 - 3414 58,465

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices on the re-
porting date. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices repre-
sent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the current

bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where it
is available and rely as little as possible on entity spe-
cific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instru-

ment is included in level 2.

IERTSEEZ &R TR AR BERM A H
e R o v A T o I O AR 52 2 T B, K2
Dy, READ. PESESRI | E B s M A M
WS, HaSdfE 2B s A mg
K5 BTG RS 1 BT 355 o A4 B B s & il
FEZ NGB RERHAM, B8 TRAOEES
LRGN

I B 2 e TR A B E T AiE
TEAETT YRR o i 55 A (B AT A SRR FRBE (o 11 ] 4
TR AT B TS5 MR , 0 T 5K PR BE e 38 23 ) 4
JE MO HCRARE , R 2> Fe B (E TR BT 2R B
AEZFWRRAHERN, 2 TR UEESER2 .,
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

33 Fair value estimation (Continued)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in

level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial

instruments include:

. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for simi-
lar instruments.

. Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow
analysis, are used to determine fair value for

the remaining financial instruments.

The following table represents the changes in level 3
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2010.

WEZZE-FH T A ST —HIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

3 S5 J B 7 B (4

33 ARfEEME A

s — 22 (R 2 B AR R T B T Mk

71, HIEZIH T A3,

JH S 385 4 i TR A Al (6 BT ARG R A (B BT

LA

. TR AR B2 5 o 3 [ R A A

. PR HA B AT AR E etk S TR Z A Al
{H, WA BLEEH T,

THREFIAEENEHI THREE " —FF+
TH=ET—HIEFEREE),

Total

wast

RMB’000

ANR¥ETIT

Opening balance R_F—FHF—H—H 3414

Exchange difference i 5, 25 S (103)

Impairment NERIEN (3,311)

Closing balance REF—FE+A=1—H -
Total losses for the period including in profit or TR IR 1 P SRR A

loss for assets held at the end of the reporting period TR s 1B 4E 3 (3414)

The following table represents the changes in level 3
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2009.

TREFNAEENEF TERBRE-ZSFIET
“H=t—HIEAFER ),

Total

Hst

RMB’000

NR¥ETIT

Opening balance AL NAE—-H—H 3417

Exchange difference i 5, 25 S (3)

Closing balance NEEBEFETH=1—H 3414
Total losses for the period including in profit or ARG TR A 0 A 2 R A

loss for assets held at the end of the reporting period TR R 4R % 3)
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WEZEZE-FE T A= —HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

(a)

(b)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concern-
ing the future. The resulting accounting estimates will,
by definition, seldom equal to the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next finan-

cial year are discussed below.

Impairment of new drugs technology

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has
been impairment of new drugs technology in accor-
dance with the accounting policy stated. The recover-
able amounts of cash-generating units are determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates and assumptions made by
management on the future operation of the business,
pre-tax discount rates, and other assumptions under-

lying the value-in-use calculations.

Estimation of provision for impairment of receiv-

ables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receiv-
ables based on an assessment of the collectability of
trade and other receivables. Provisions for impairment
are applied to trade and other receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of doubtful
debts requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of receivables and doubtful debt expense in

the period in which such estimate is changed.

(a)

(b)

2010 4 i # i
ANNUAL REPORT

Cik ScR L Wi i

T S i S R IR, B LR L m Al st B
Fllr, A AR RE A X R (B H
TRAE GBS UL T AR & B S B e A
WE RPN E TR

ARER B AR SRAE Al S B, TR A Z Bt
A S A B M R S A B P A B (B AR
AT RESECT — A AR 2 P I s (AR T B R A
HRIRBER R . A BRI O T3,
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(a)

(e)

2010 4 f # &
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Net realisable value of work-in-progress

Provision for slowing-moving work-in-progress is
made based on the ageing and accomplishment of cer-
tain milestone stage such as clinical studies permit
during the process of development. The assessment of
the provision amount required involving management
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome
or expectation in future is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the carrying
value of work-in-progress and provision charge/write-
back in the period in which such estimate has been

changed.
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in re-
sponse to competition within the industry. Manage-
ment will increase the depreciation charge where use-
ful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it
will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or

non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
Income taxes

The Group is principally subject to income taxes in
the PRC. Significant judgment is required in determin-
ing the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the cur-
rent income tax provision and deferred income tax as-
sets and liabilities in the period in which such deter-

mination is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WEZZE-FH T A ST —HIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WE—FFE T A=A LR
For the year ended 31 December 2010

5.

Breakdown of the revenue from all services is as

follows:

WA B E

2010 4 i # i
ANNUAL REPORT

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. BREWN I FE R

2010 2009
e S £ “EBBNE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETIT ANR¥TIT
Analysis of revenue by category e AN Jr 38
Contracted clinical research services (VPS) £ 40 BE ) B B BB PR AT IR 26,755 24814
WA — A S B 1A
Contracted pharmaceutical development B 4 ) B B BRI R BT 2T IR 4,316 14,936
services (PDS) WA — AEAS S B F AT
Import registration services (IRS) T R AR B WA 1,013 1411
Royalty income BT RE A B IR 5,400 5,640
Sales of active pharmaceutical ingredients S B R B 4) RE R 203 507
products (API)
Total &3t 37,687 47,308

Turnover and contribution to profit from operations
by segment has not been presented as over 80% of the
Group’s turnover was derived from the pharmaceuti-

cal research and development, registration, application

and testing in the PRC and all assets were located in

the PRC for both years.

HIA AR SE [ R 3 80% 2 & 3B A L Bl 2
DudEprgs, R, MRS LARRIEL, AT A
AP 4 TR B, A R 22 918 SE R L S A
Bl A Z BRI
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2010 4F g i

_ ANNUAL REPORT

bR M BB It

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_E-BFE+_H=1—HIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 6. Wt R G — AN
GROUP
Machinery
Leasehold and Motor
improvement equipment vehicles Total
HEYHEE M B A T At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRWF T ANREF T ANREF T ANR#FT
At 1 January 2009 RoEENE—H—H
Cost A 7,460 11,857 1,010 20,327
Accumulated depreciation Bt E (2,296) (6,309) (802) (9,407)
Net book amount BRTANFE 5,164 5,548 208 10,920
Year ended 31 December 2009 RoEENEFTH=1—H
Opening net book amount BR A HE BR8240 5,164 5,548 208 10,920
Additions A H BN 136 446 - 582
Depreciation (Note 22) PR (W2t 22) (545) (1,255) (34) (1834)
Closing net book amount BE A HE B R A3 %R 4,755 4,739 174 9,668
At 31 December 2009 HoEELETH=1T—H
Cost A 7,596 12,303 1,010 20,909
Accumulated depreciation B E (2,841) (7,564) (836) (11,241)
Net book amount [ T 4,755 4,739 174 9,668
Year ended 31 December 2010 RoF—FE+_H=1+—H
Opening net book amount BE T HE BV A8 2R 4,755 4,739 174 9,668
Additions RN 363 10,306 - 10,669
Written off b€ - (7) - (7)
Depreciation (Note 22) P 22) (1,129) (2,364) (110) (3,598)
Written back [] 5 - 6 - 6
Closing net book amount BE T HE B R A8 %R 3,994 12,680 64 16,738
At 31 December 2010 HoE-FELH=1+—H
Cost A 7,959 22,602 1,010 31,571
Accumulated depreciation B (3,965) (9,922) (946) (14,833)
Net book amount HRTHTHAE 3,994 12,680 64 16,738

Depreciation expense of approximately RMB 1,780,000
(2009: RMB1,260,000) has been charged in “cost of
sales” and approximately of RMB1,818,000 (2009:
RMB574,000) in “administrative expenses”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEZ 4T _A=1T—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 4 i # i
ANNUAL REPORT

7. NEW DRUGS TECHNOLOGY - GROUP 7. HEER T — AR
RMB’000
N 2T
At 1 January 2009 REERRIAE—-H—H
Cost AR 22,058
Accumulated amortisation and impairment S M E (11,613)
Net book amount R T+ 10,445
Year ended 31 December 2009 RoEZEZNET_HA=+—H
Opening net book amount 1A T 0 10,445
Amortisation charge (Note 22) A S (B 2% 22) (1,071)
Closing net book amount WR TS I R 8RR 9,374
At 31 December 2009 REERRIAETF A =1—H
Cost %N 22,058
Accumulated amortisation and impairment S N E (12,684)
Net book amount R TV FHE 9.374
Year ended 31 December 2010 NoFE—-FE+_H=+—H
Opening net book amount SR T (B ) B 9,374
Amortisation charge (Note 22) A S (B 28 22) (2,341)
Disposal A (2,823)
Impairment A (4,210)
Closing net book amount R T 5+H(E B R kA -
At 31 December 2010 Mo —FFETZA=ZT—H
Cost %N 18,352
Accumulated amortisation and impairment St S SR (18,352)
Net book amount HRTHFHE -

The new drugs technology included above have finite
useful lives, over which the assets are amortised. The
amortisation period for development costs incurred on
the Group’s new drugs technology is five years. De-
tails of critical accounting estimates were set out in
Note 4(a).

Amortization of approximately RMB2,341,000 (2009:
RMB1,071,000) is included in the “administrative

expenses”.

LERPON R BEST B A IR AR, R % B
IR RS . AR B HT BE BT B % PR B AR
S R TAE, A B E B e Al R R RN
Fif ik 4(a),

HESHER AN RI2.,341 00070(—FF LA AR
1,071,000 jo)fE [EHEM ] R,
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WEZZE-FH T A ST —HIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

8. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 8. [ff B 23 BIHE RS — AS A |]
2010 2009
CR-RAE “ERNE
RMB’000 RMB’000
NG S NRHTIT
Unlisted shares, at cost e b A FEIRR G — BAE 30,374 30,374
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 9) TE ST 8 2N TR TE (P EE: 9) 49,599 48,122
Total &EF 79,973 78,496
The cost of the unlisted shares is based on the book A BT eAry 2 BUAAEL T 4% A A B A AR T 4 H D
value of the underlying net assets of the subsidiaries 115 B JB8 2 E1RH BR & P i 2 BRI (E R
attributable to the Group on the date of the Group
Reorganisation.
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, in- WA IR B 7 ) s s eI | i R ] o 2 B
terest-free and have no fixed repayment terms. FR o
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as RATIN B —FEL T A= —HZ FEHE A
at 31 December 2010 are as follows: RS .
Place of
incorporation Particulars of
and kind of issued share capital/ Interest
Name legal entity Principal activities registered capital Held
CEATIRA
kR ERUEE S 2N TR PR PR
Shares directly held by the Company:
Venturepharm Laboratories British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), Investment holding US$100 100%
(BVI) Limited (“VP (BVI)”) Limited liability company
Venovo Pharma US Inc. British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), Investment holding USS$1 100%
Limited liability company
AT A I
Venturepharm Laboratories (BVI) R LB E(BVL)), ERRE 100 ¢ 100%
Limited (“VP(BVI)”) HIREALAH
Venovo Pharma US Inc. W g E(BVI), ERE 150 100%

AR T
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8. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 8. [ B 28 BIHE RS — AS A 6l (48)
(CONTINUED)
Place of Particulars of
incorporation issued
and kind of share capital/ Interest
Name legal entity Principal activities registered capital Held
CEBATIRA/
AEA FRUEEY SR IN TEKBERES SRR PrilifEd:

Shares indirectly held by the Company:
JUm R 2SR B
ARAH

BB AR T
AR

VPSCRO Group Inc.

A ml B A B
Jemig R s A By 1A 5 %
AR

B RN T
HIRAT
VPSCRO Group Inc.

Beijing, the PRC,
Limited liability
company

Hanzhong, the PRC,
Limited liability
company

British Virgin Islands,
Limited liability

company

R,
HREAEA T

I
A IREAE A7

P i iR, (TBVL)
AREALAH

The research and
development of new
drug preparation, raw
materials, supplementary
materials and biodrugs
technological transfer
and services

Sales and manufacturing
of active pharmaceutical
ingredients products

Inactive

BIFTE B B T 2E
JERRE, B AR
(B S s )
PR TR
B s

B % A A
J53 PE
By

US$865,000 94.512%

US$306,000 51%

USS$1 100%

865,000 3T 94.512%

306,000 37T 51%

1350 100%
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8. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 8. [if J&8 28 Rl MERR — AN Rl (48)

(CONTINUED)
Place of Particulars of
incorporation issued
and kind of share capital/ Interest
Name legal entity Principal activities registered capital Held
CEATIRA/
Ak EALE VIR TR BT ALY L
Shares indirectly held by the Company: (Continued)
T SR Ay RHEAF 5T Hainan, the PRC, The research, development and US$360,000 100%
Limited liability production of drugs, natural
company drugs and synthetic drugs;

technological transfer of and
services for the research and
development of biodrugs,
natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; pharmacodynamic

and clinical research of drugs

T A e B B Beijing, the PRC, The research, development and US$200,000 100%
AR Limited liability production of drugs, natural
company drugs and synthetic drugs;

technological transfer of and
services for the research and
development of biodrugs,
natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; pharmacodynamic

and clinical research of drugs

A R B AT I 3 ()
R B A BB AT B R WH5E, B T A L 360,000 7T 100%
AREEAT RIRGE i T By I I
W e /E LN
FKIRGER R AR
PR s M
LTI RGBT
Jert s LR R R, WF5E, B AL L 200,000 37T 100%
AT AREEAT RIRGE N T By L M5
W e /E SLR
KRG R AR
AOLLE YT/ T v
E LIPS R

Ry
S
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8. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

2010 4 i # i
ANNUAL REPORT

8. Wi B8 2 W RE 2 — A2\ (A7)

(CONTINUED)
Place of Particulars of
incorporation issued
and kind of share capital/ Interest
Name legal entity Principal activities registered capital Held
CEATIRA/
Ak EALREN SR IN FER BT AL -

Shares indirectly held by the Company: (Continued)

JeshiE R E R ER
AR

Rt Pt 2R
AR

A F R A B3 ()
JURUHTER A AR
AR

JUr i 2L B
AR

Beijing, the PRC,
Limited liability

company

Beijing, the PRC,
Limited liability

company

B,

HRRAEAT

R,
HRRAEAT

The research, development and
production of new drugs,
natural drugs, and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer

of and services for research

and development of biodrugs,

natural drugs and synthetic
drugs, pharmacodynamic and
clinical research of drugs
The research, development and
production of drugs, natural
drugs and synthetic drugs;
technological transfer of and
services for the research and
development of biodrugs,
natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; pharmacodynamic
and clinical research of drugs

BHoE. g R
KIRGEfh B A
W e /E SR
KRG AR
BT E Y e T v
GERIO T e B R

W58, BB SR RSN,
KIREE ft Ty K 5
LW e E SR
FIREER B A2
BT E Ve T v
GERIOR T B R

]
HE
=]
HA 3

#® W

iy

Y

US$200,000 100%
US$200,000 100%
200,000 7T 100%
200,000 7T 100%

ekt EXARAAS8S
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

8. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 8. it JB 2 EIHE SR — AN |l (4)

(CONTINUED)
Place of Particulars of
incorporation issued
and kind of share capital/ Interest
Name legal entity Principal activities registered capital Held
CEATIRA/
Ak EALE VIR TR BT ALY L
Shares indirectly held by the Company: (Continued)
TN E 2 BRI A TR AT Taizhou, the PRC, The research, development RMB1,000,000 100%
Limited liability and production of drugs,
company natural drugs and synthetic

drugs; technological

transfer of and services for
the research and
development of biodrugs,
natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; pharmacodynamic
and clinical research of drugs

AR A A By (4)
TN R AR A R A T C BN WFE. BREE R AR LN A EE 1,000,000 78 100%
AREAEAT RIREE I R A IR 5
T T B S LR EE R
RIREER R ATEE ML
BATHEGH IR 5
B [ BERO 5 B R R
Note:  None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities out- Mzt HHE 2 5] AN AE AR R AN AF JE A ATfa] B ] #E (F
standing at the end of the year or any time during fa] i R (5,
the year.
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9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - 9. Al R B AN — AR A T S R 2
GROUP AND COMPANY
Group ARLEH
Assets at fair
Loans and value through
receivables profit or loss Total
1 RlEE
EIBAR A ek
K B HEOK Z R e ot
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
PN T ARETT ARBETT
Assets as per consolidated statement of BRI DL P
financial position 31 December 2010 RoEZ—-FE+_HA=1+—H
Trade and other receivables (excluding T ISR R LAt Ak 29,138 29,138
prepayments) (Note 11 and 12) & ARSI E 11 H112)
Financial assets at fair value through WA REEBRIETEY 60,138 60,138
profit or loss (Note 13) L& E(MEE 13)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 14) 4 KRS E Y (M 14) 6,910 6,910
Total &t 36,048 60,138 96,186
Assets as per consolidated statement of LA B IR DR
financial position 31 December 2009 REEFIUETFH=1T—H
Trade and other receivables (excluding TR AT B 3 R L T WK 42413 42,413
prepayments) (Note 11 and 12) (RNETEATIEZO PR 11 50 12)
Financial assets at fair value through N EE SRR 58,465 58,465
profit or loss (Note 13) L RlA E (Pf5E 13)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 14) T4 A 2B (e 14) 14,087 14,087
Total &z 56,500 58,465 114,965
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - 9. i T L B AN — A B 18] S AR ) (4)
GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Group (Continued) A (4E)
Other financial
liabilities
HoAth 4 Falt £ 5
RMB’000
NR¥ETIT
Liabilities as per consolidated statement of SZAEMBIRNE AR
financial position 31 December 2010 Ro-F-FFE T _HA=1+—H
Borrowings T 108,005
Other payables and accruals Al JEE A S R T A5 ¢ 31,153
Total it 139,158
Liabilities as per consolidated statement of EAMB RN K AR
financial position 31 December 2009 RE-EEZNNET_H=1+—H
Borrowings R 78,333
Other payables and accruals L Ath Ak S B A5 2 13,368
Total it 91,701
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9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - 9.
GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED)

2010 4 i # i
ANNUAL REPORT

il T WA — AL I B AR 2 W) (4H)

Company AN ]
Assets at fair
Loans and value through
receivables profit or loss Total
1 RlEE
%R R
M ek Z AR B it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
PN T AR#ETT ARETT
Assets as per statement of financial BRI R G PE
position 31 December 2010 W oE—-FHET T H=1—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 8) TSP 2 w2 TR (P 8) 49,599 49,599
Other receivables HAb EIGR RS AT IRRN) 7,309 7309
Financial assets at fair value through A R EEBEBRTEZ 60,138 60,138
profit or loss (Note 13) ERNERE(MEE 13)
Cash and cash equivalent (Note 14) 4 RIS E Y (Mar 14) 53 53
Total Lzt 56,961 60,138 117,099
Assets as per statement of financial W R I G e
position 31 December 2009 RoEEEFHA=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 8) TS P B S T TR (P 8) 48,122 48,122
Other receivables HAt UG OR & TR IEZ) 1,238 1,238
Financial assets at fair value through N EEEEIER R 58,465 58,465
profit or loss (Note 13) Gl (P 13)
Cash and cash equivalent (Note 14) T4 A 2B (Pt 14) 522 522
Total &z 49 882 58,465 108,347
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9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - 9. i T L B AN — A 8 18] S AR 0N ) (4)
GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Company (Continued) ARNE(H)
Other financial
liabilities
A 5 R £ £
RMB’000
ANRHEET T
Liabilities as per statement of financial IR R A
position 31 December 2010 R-F—-ZFE T _HA=1—H
Borrowings e 108,005
Other payables and accruals At B ASF 30 2 A B 17,627
Total frat 125,632
Liabilities as per statement of financial R R A
position 31 December 2009 REFEENLET H=1—H
Borrowings ek 78,333
Other payables and accruals oA A R R E AT B 7.228
Total frat 85,561
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10. WORK-IN-PROGRESS - GROUP 10. TEFE N — A EEH
2010 2009
TR R “EFNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRHETIT ANR¥ETIT
Work-in-progress TEEE
- contracted (Note (a)) — EET 41t (a)) 24,940 19,699
Work-in-progress TEE i
-not-contracted (Note (b)) — RETZIFEE (b)) 33,909 40,951
Total it 58,849 60,650
(a)  The balance represents the project costs incurred for (a)  EEMIECETA W9 M B s SRR EE L e A

the contracted research and development, pharmaceu-
tical application, registration and testing services, but
have not met the extent of the milestone payments
earned in accordance with the applicable performance

requirements and contractual terms.

(b) The balance comprises of development costs incurred (b)
with the intention of outright sales as technology trans-

fer but have not been contracted.

Tl R 5 A 2 T RCAS e F A 1o R I 5 A B
R T oy TR o8 s 22 e B T A B MSCHBURH R e

ES
HIH,

%S R AR TR R BT R I B 2 BB AA,
M ARFT LA

11.  TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP 11, RN — A
2010 2009
SERBE BB
RMB’000 RMB’000
UNGHL & T ANRETIT
Trade receivables TEISHR K 40,831 35,960
Less: provision for impairment of Tk s DR E (30,484) (20,737)

trade receivables

Trade receivables - net TEUS BR 3k 28 10,347 15,223

BamiEXARAAIS
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11. TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP (CONTINUED) 11. T WS R gk — A B [ (4E)
The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days NEFGTE T HE A RE—RE LR R E
to its trade customers. As 31 December 2010 and 2009, — AR N TEENFTHET—H, WEHE T E
the ageing of the trade receivables net of impairment WO IR B ANT «
were as follows:
2010 2009
R R ZEZNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
UNGH S T NR¥ETTT
1-30 days 1-30 % 3,217 3,307
31-60 days 31-60 K 485 1,009
61-90 days 61-90 K& 2,430 1,695
91-180 days 91-180 K 425 1,060
Over 180 days I 180 K 3,790 8,152
Total =xis 10,347 15223

As at 31 December 2010, trade receivables of
RMB4,215,000 (2009: RMB9,212,000) were past due
but not impaired. These relate to a number of indepen-
dent customers for whom there is no recent history of
default. These customers have a good track record with
the Group. Based on the past experience, the manage-
ment believes that no impairment is provided in re-
spect of these balances as there have no significant
changes in the credit quality of these customers and
the balances are considered fully recoverable. The

Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

As of 31 December 2010, trade receivables of
RMB9,747,000 (2009: RMB1,245,000) were impaired
and provided for. The amount of the provision was
RMB30,484,000 as at 31 December 2010 (2009:
RMB20,737,000). The individually impaired receiv-
ables mainly related to customers, which are in unex-
pected difficult economic situations. It was assessed
that a portion of the receivables is expected not to be

recovered.
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11. TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP (CONTINUED) 11. JE I IRk — AN 2 [ (45)

A5 B 2 MBSO Rl (B A B 2 A0

Movement on the Group’s provision for impairment

of trade receivables are as follow:

2010 2009

R R ZEZNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHET T NG 2TH

At 1 January w—H—H 20,737 19,492
Provision for impairment of receivable T LT B R Rl (L Y A 9,747 1,245
At 31 December mt+—_HA=+—H 30,484 20,737

The other classes within trade receivables do not con-

tain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting

date is the carrying value of each class of receivables

mentioned above. The Group does not hold any col-

lateral as security.

12. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - 12.

GROUP

The prepayments and other receivables are as follows:

JREMAC 52 5 M i A E A 31 S 5 EL i W o

TR H T T I 2 AR A5 L B LA MBS
FRTAIEL, A S 1P A (AT R4 A A P AR £

A MRk B WGk — A 4 [

FEAT MRS A R ISR B A 0 T

2010 2009

R —RAE ZEREBJA

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWT T NR#ETIT

Prepayments FEfTHR K 23,037 7,808
Other receivables oA B GR 18,791 27,190
Total =i 41,828 34,998
Related parties BE )y 4,078 27221
Third parties i 37,750 7,777
Total At 41,828 34,998

U R At B WSO 2 iR T (L 23 AL (B (E AR

°

The carrying amounts of prepayments and other re-

o

ceivables approximate their fair values.
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13. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 13. A B EERIR S IR 2 S RlE PE — AN EE AR
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS - GROUP AND /ATl
COMPANY
Group and Company
AL B B AR E]
2010 2009
R FAE “ERNE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETIT ANR#TIT
Foreign currency bond fund AN S R4 4,433 8,800
Investment funds Eg - - 7,338
Bond (=83 - 3414
Shares il 55,705 38,413
Total &t 60,138 58,465

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented within “investing activities” in the consoli-

dated statement of cash flows.

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recorded in “other income”

in the statement of comprehensive income (Note 20).

The fair value of all financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is based on their current bid prices

in an active market.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are

denominated in the following currencies:

s AUEE SRR R ROk S RlE ETEH SR
ORI RGBT,

o R EEERRRRCIRZ SR e ER A~ e (E s
By RO SRR AR AR 2R A AR ] A3 7R (P
20),

iR e s B EE SR RC AR 2 24 AUEE TR IEH
ST b Pl = W

s AUEIEB IR ARt RO iR S Al 22 AT 91 Wt
fH:

Group and Company
A4 B B A 2

2010 2009
CE R “EEIUE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TIT ANREETIT
HK dollars biite 55,705 33,765
US dollars e 4,433 24,700
Total Gl 60,138 58,465
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14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - GROUP 14.

2010 4 i # i
ANNUAL REPORT

W PR &5 1Y — AR R A AT

AND COMPANY
Group Company
AL AT
2010 2009 2010 2009
TR EBNAFE CE-FE FEENE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT  AR®TR AR¥TIT AR¥ETT
Cash at banks and on hand SRATTEER I A7 IR 4 6,910 14,087 53 522
Bank balances and cash were denominated in the fol- SRATERBE S B4 FR T 9 B WA Al
lowing currencies:
Group Company
A A H]
2010 2009 2010 2009
TER-FE BB CE-FE FENLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®Tx AR¥WTET AR¥ETT
Renminbi NG 6,822 13,530 - -
US dollars ESSIn 88 557 53 522
Total &t 6,910 14,087 53 522
15. SHARE CAPITAL 15 BA
Shown in
Number of the financial
ordinary shares Amount statements
Eaile i gE| ot gL E 1N
HK$°000 RMB’000
W T 7T NS
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BT A 0.1 ey Ak
Authorised: EE,
At 31 December 2009 and RoEBZIE+A=+—H 1,000,000,000 100,000 106,000
31 December 2010 K —FE -+ "H=+—H
Issued and fully paid: CEAT AR
At 31 December 2009 and RoEBZIE+A=+—H 363,511,664 36,351 38,469

31 December 2010

K;_F-FF+A=1—H

BamiEXARAAO3
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15. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 15. WA (4)

A summary of the above movements in issued share IRA Y F AT A B S R AN T
capital of the Company is as follows:

2010 2009
R R “EZfLE
Number Number
of issued of issued
ordinary ordinary
shares of Par value shares of Par value
HKS$0.1 each HK$000 HK$0.1 each HKS$000
g T AE B Bm(E
W 0.1 LI w01 JTH
3 A e Spliliie T

BT T BT EB¥ T

Beginning of the year W] 363,511,664 36,351 362,806,664 36,281
Issue of shares pursuant to B AT - - 705,000 70
exercise of share options BT PR
(Note (a)) (FftE(a))
End of the year WK 363,511,664 36,351 363,511,664 36,351
Notes: HifEL
(a) No new shares were issued upon the exercise of (a) ARAE R A T B R T B 1 7.2 W (2
options under the share option scheme during the FEILAE:705,000 JEEEEIEE $0.1 J 12 F LA
year. (2009: 705,000 shares of HK$0.1 par value I $0.36 JENE T $0.625 HEMEZ FTEE#1T),

each were issued at an exercise price ranging from
HK3$0.36 to HK$0.625 per share).

The Company has share option schemes as at 31 De- AT A= [, A TR
cember 2010, under which it may grant options to =147 1 SR HE T A A (R B DA A A )
employees of the Group to subscribe for shares of the Oy, ALEREVA (T REIAE, )RR E T
Company. During the year, no options lapsed (2009: T % B A T 2

nil) in connection with the cessation of employment

of certain employees and the expiry of exercise period.

No option exercised during the year. In 2009, the ex- AR BN S R RE AT, R T BB, AT
ercise of share options yielded the proceeds of RMB FEHE A5 2508 5 AR 288,000 IT
288.,000.
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15. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Movements in the number of share options outstand-

ing and their related weighted average exercise prices

during the year ended 31 December 2010 are as

2010 4 i # i
ANNUAL REPORT

A ()

SR AT G RN J A I T4 G
AL = FRAE ML SRR
Fs

follows:
Number of share options
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At
Exercise 1 January during  during the during the 31 December
Date of grant Price Note 2010 the year year year 2010
B HER
TR [/ S
HEH ATHERE P —HA—H KRN ASEATHE ORFEESS FZH=1—H
20 June 2003 HK$0.32 (1) 9,720,000 - - - 9,720,000
20 June 2003 HK$0.40 (ii) 1,800,000 - - - 1,800,000
2 March 2005 HK$0.52 (iii) 1,572,000 - - - 1,572,000
14 December 2005 HKS$0.45 @iv) 619,200 - - - 619,200
10 August 2006 HK$0.36 (v) 2,590,200 - - - 2,590,200
10 May 2007 HK$0.625 (vi) 6,449,800 - - - 6,449,800
7 April 2009 HK$0.435 (vii) 11,966,800 - - - 11,966,800
34,718,000 - 34,718,000
CEREREAENATH 0.32 #&51 (i) 9,720,000 - - - 9,720,000
CEREBEAENATH 0.40 #&51 (ii) 1,800,000 - - - 1,800,000
CEENFEZHTH 0.52 #70 (iii) 1,572,000 - - - 1,572,000
CTEERAETHFIUA 0.45 #70 @iv) 619,200 - - - 619,200
TEENENATH 0.36 {70 (v) 2,590,200 - - - 2,590,200
TEELRERATH 0.625 #70 (vi) 6,449,800 - - - 6,449,800
TEEJAENALH 0.435 #70 (vii) 11,966,800 - - - 11,966,800
Gt 34,718,000 - - - 34,718,000
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15. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 15. WA (4)
Movements in the number of share options outstand- FAT SR RE S H N A B RE P TR —
ing and their related weighted average exercise prices FEJUFETH A HIREEE I 2 BRI an
during the year ended 31 December 2009 are as T
follows:

Number of share options

At Granted Exercised Lapsed At
Exercise 1 January during during the during the 31 December
Date of grant Price Note 2009 the year year year 2009
TERCRERH
MBI N EEIJUE
BREH 1T HEME PR —H—H AR AAEATHE O ARFREE  FZH=1+—H
20 June 2003 HK$0.32 6 9,720,000 - - - 9,720,000
20 June 2003 HK$0.40 (ii) 1,800,000 - - - 1,800,000
2 March 2005 HK$0.52 (iii) 1,827,000 - (255,000) - 1,572,000
14 December 2005 HK$0.45 (iv) 619,200 - - - 619,200
10 August 2006 HK$0.36 v) 2,916,900 - (326,700) - 2,590,200
10 May 2007 HK$0.625 (vi) 6,573,100 - (123,300) - 6,449,800
7 April 2009 HK$0.435 (vii) - 11,966,800 - - 11,966,800
23456200 11,966,800 (705,000) - 34,718,000
TEEZAESNHH 0.32 T (i) 9,720,000 - - - 9,720,000
TEEZENATTH 0.40 T (ii) 1,800,000 - - - 1,800,000
CEETRAEZA A 0.52 #7C (iii) 1,827,000 - (255,000) - 1,572,000
CEFBHAETTHTIH 045 #50 (iv) 619,200 - - - 619,200
TEENENATH 0.36 {0 ) 2,916,900 - (326,700) - 2,590,200
“ELZEERLHTH 0.625 #75 (vi) 6,573,100 - (123,300) - 6,449,800
ZETJAEMHEH 0.435 7T (vii) - 11,966,800 - - 11,966,800
&zt 23456200 11,966,800 (705,000) - 34,718,000

96 | VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WEZEZE-FE T A= —HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

15.

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

These options are exercisable at HK$0.32
(RMBO0.28) per share in three trenches: the maximum
percentage of options exercisable within the periods
commencing from 1 January 2004 to 31 December
2004, from I*" January 2005 to 31° December 2005
and after 1*' January 2006 are 30%, 60% and 100%,
respectively. The options shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from the grant date.

These options are exercisable at HK$0.40
(RMBO0.35) per share in three trenches: the maxi-
mum percentage of options exercisable within the
periods commencing from 1 January 2003 to 31
December 2003, I*' January 2004 to 31 December
2004 and after 1 January 2005 are 30%, 60% and
100%, respectively. The options shall be valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from the grant date.

These options are exercisable at HK$0.52
(RMBO0.46) per share: the share options exercisable
within the period commencing from 2 March 2005
to 1 March 2015. The options shall be valid and ef-
fective for a period of 10 years from the grant date.

These options are exercisable at HK$0.45
(RMBO0.40) per share: the share options exercis-
able within the period commencing from 14 De-
cember 2005 to 13 December 2015. The options
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from the grant date.

These options are exercisable at HK$0.36
(RMBO0.32) per share: the share options exercisable
within the period commencing from 10 August 2006
to 9 August 2016. The options shall be valid and ef-
fective for a period of 10 years from the grant date.

These options are exercisable at HK$0.625
(RMBO0.55) per share: the share options exercisable
within the period commencing from 10 May 2007 to
9 May 2017. The options shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from the grant date.

These options are exercisable at HK$0.435
(RMBO0.38) per share: the share options exercisable
within the period commencing from 7 April 2009 to
6 April 2019. The options shall be valid and effec-
tive for a period of 10 years from the grant date.

15.

2010 4 i # i
ANNUAL REPORT

JBEAR — A B [ Je AN 2l (4)

M

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

LRI T (R 0.32 #7T(0.28 A R
#), =R B EEAE——H E
ZEEES A =F—H, ZEEFLFE—/
—HEZFEFRFE S H=F—R FEENF
—H—HUz, 3H5I%30%, 60% K 100% Z A]
TATEIRIRBE o T _E R 2 al i %
SRR I HAZ i H A2 04 A AR A

R AT (E S 477 0.40 [ 0(0.35 A
R, a5 = T AR EE=F— ] —
HEZEEZAFfFZH =1 —H, ZFFWFE
—H—HE ZFEWFEfH =R F
FHAFE—H—HUE, 37L30%, 60% Kk
100% 2 1] 171 fif SR HE B 57 o b PR 53 Bt A 2>
TR o 7% TR TEAS B 42 11 3 H 2R 104 1y
BRCRAERL,

LS IRIREZ FT A0 0.52 1 0(0.46 A R
W), AR EEFE=H CHE I E—TAE=
H— H W53 R 2 TR 3% BT L
P2 H AR 10 4F A 3 RAERL,

I (T B IS 045 #0040 AR
#), AR _EERFES AT EE T
FA A A= H AR L . 2
A FEAZ 11 5 H T 10 4F ARG AR,

I T B RS 1 0.36 #71(0.32 A R
#), AR CEENFENA A HEZE—ANEN
JILH I AR 2 ARG o i R IREREAT
i) % HAE AT 10 4F VAR AERL,

% IRIRREZ AT B 4556 0.625 #7T(0.55 A
R¥), R —FELETHEFE—LF
T H R A 2 A . IR E
HFZ i3 H AR 10 4G R,

L FIRIRREZ AT R A5/ 0 435 #7T(0.38 A
R¥), AR —FENFENALHE E—IAE
P9 75 H I 8IS 2 Al i IR
HFZ i3 H AR 10 4N RAER,
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16. RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY 16, fiifls — A EEEFnA A A
(a) Group (a) 7 4
Share- Statutory Retained
based enterprise earnings/
payment Special Capital ~ Statutory  expansion (accumulated
reserve reserve reserve reserve fund losses) Total
VAR 3 30 e BERA/
ZHieRtE NG GARE  BEAR BRES (EEH it
RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
AR¥ETT ARBTT AREFT AR®TT ARWTT AR®TT ARETT
At 1January 2009 RZERNE-H—H 2,766 6,039 1,186 3,803 6,986 45,549 66,329
Total comprehensive income AR A A et 6,276 6,276
for the year
Transactions with owners HLRTH &M 5
Employee share option benefits — {& & H HEREFI 227 227
Share premium for exercise of P RRE A 6 PR Vi 226 226
share options
Exercise of share options T (47) 47
Total transactions with owners  HLfi 4 & %8 5 A&t 180 273 453
At 31 December 2009 and REFFRET A 2,946 6,039 1,459 3,803 6,986 51825 73,058
1 January 2010 =t —-HRR_%
—%%—H—H
Total comprehensive income AR A A st (56,928) (56,928)
for the year
Transactions with owners HLRTH &M 5
Employee share option benefits — {& & Hi RHEREFI 681 681
Total transactions with owners  HLf 4 & %8 5 A&t 681 681
At 31 December 2010 RZE-FETZA 3,627 6,039 1,459 3,803 6,986 (5,103) 16811
=“+—H
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16. RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY 16. il — AREBFIARN R (4H)

(CONTINUED)
(b)  Company (b)  AAT
Share-
based
payment Capital  Contribution Accumulated
reserve reserve surplus losses Total
VAR 63 3 A RERA/
Z B4 i ARG PERK 7 (Bt 1) ot
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHETT  ARBETT AREETT  AR¥TIT ARETIC
At 1 January 2009 REFERNE—-A—H 2,853 1,093 28,011 (10,103) 21,854
Total comprehensive income ARAERE 2Tkt AE - - - (7,616) (7,616)

for the year

Transactions with owners BT Z NS
Employee share option benefits B B REAE A 227 _ R B 227
Share premium for exercise of T AR AT (0 R 1 e - 226 - - 226
share options
Exercise of share option T8 HIHE (47) 47
Total transactions with owners BT ZNZE S A 180 273 - - 453
At 31 December 2009 and REZFRIETZH 3,033 1,366 28,011 (17,719) 14,691
1 January 2010 =t+—-Hm_-%F—
L i
Total comprehensive income AR 2Tkt GE - - - (32,000) (32.,000)

for the year

Transactions with owners BT & B3 5

Employee share option benefits B B REAE A 681 _ R B 681

Total transactions with owners LR B S A% 681 - - - 681

At 31 December 2010 WZF—FFE+ A 3,714 1,366 28,011 (49.719) (16,628)
=t—n
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RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the Company Law of the PRC, articles of
association and board resolutions of the Company, the
Company provides 10% from its net profit for the year
determined in accordance with China Accounting Stan-
dards for the statutory surplus reserve until the bal-
ance of this reserve reaches 50% of the paid-up share
capital. Statutory surplus reserve can be used to re-
duce any losses incurred or to increase share capital of
the Company. Statutory surplus reserve balance should
not fall below 25% of the registered capital after any

such shares issuance.
Statutory enterprise expansion fund

As stipulated by the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
the subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC
shall appropriate 5% or 10% of its net profit after tax
as the statutory enterprise expansion fund. The direc-
tor shall have discretion in determining the percent-
age within the range specified by the relevant PRC laws

and regulations.
Special reserve

The special reserve represents the differences between
the nominal value of the shares of VP (BVI), the com-
pany which was the holding company of the other
members of the Group prior to the Group
Reorganisation, and the nominal value of the
company’s shares issued thereof pursuant to the Group

Reorganisation.
Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the additional contribu-
tions made by the shareholders of the Company prior
to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange and the additional contributions made by the
minority shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company
during the year.

100l VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

fifi it — AN SR W FnAS 2y W) (46)

s

AR P B 2 ISR Je AN o R AR AN, A5 2w ZE A
AR Bt I R E 23 MY 10% 2 TE =94
EATR, HEGIREATER AN FEMEAN
50% Fh 1k o IR E AR f b 2R e HE R A A
AR RS IR AT VE o Y558 A BT VRIS i A
SRR A) S R TEA N FIRCA, TR
TN FIRAR A E AR E AR A 2
FIA) 25%

LR IS

HRABAT B B ) Bk L2 MRE , A 24 T o B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WEZEZE-FE T A= —HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

16.

RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the net assets of the subsidiaries
and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares is-
sued in exchange thereof pursuant to the Group

Reorganisation.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
its shareholders comprise share premium, capital
reserve, contributed surplus and accumulated profit.
In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, dividends shall be payable out of the profit

or other reserves, including the share premium account,
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of the Company and, under the Companies Law (2002
Revision) of the Cayman Islands, the Company must
be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business immediately following the distri-
bution of dividend.

17. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS - GROUP 17 HABJEA R B REAT 2 H — AR 4E A 24 6l

AND COMPANY
Group Company
oy e

2010 2009 2010 2009
ZE-FFE TFFAHE  ZEF-FF CIFFNE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIL ARW¥TRT ARETIT ARWTIC
Other payables HA AT 28,481 12,113 16,507 6,678
Accrued expenses TEATE 2,672 1,255 1,120 550
Total &t 31,153 13,368 17,627 7,228
Related parties Eapiiyag 7,957 1,530 - -
Third parties B= 23,196 11,838 17,627 7,228
Total &=t 31,153 13,368 17,627 7,228
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

18. BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY 18. R —AEEFIAAF
Group Company
ARLEHE AL
2010 2009 2010 2009
TR -FRE EBENFE CE-FE FENLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTIE  AR¥ETIT  ARETIT ARWTT

Non-current |k}

Convertible bonds AR E S 108,005 78,333 108,005 78,333
At 31 December 2010, the carrying amounts and fair ANTEBE—FAEA T H=ET—H, REFEMARNE R
value of the non-current convertible bonds for the AR B ] AR B IR T AT A B A S N R
Group and the Company amounted approximately of 108,005,000 70( —EEU4FE. A RH78,333,0007T),

RMB108,005,000 (2009: RMB78,333,000).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the A E FIAS N BRI S SR R THE DA T2 B =2 5
Company’s borrowings are denominated in the follow-

ing currencies:

Group and Company
A EE B B AR ]
2010 2009
R R ZEZF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRHETIL ANRHEETIT
Swiss Francs Fit - VERR 108,005 78,333
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WEZEZE-FE T A= —HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

18.

BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

Convertible bonds

On 10 September 2007, Venturepharm Laboratories
Limited, issued bonds of an aggregate principal amount
of CHF15,000,000. Unless previously redeemed, repur-
chased and cancelled or converted, any outstanding con-
vertible bonds shall be redeemed at the redemption
amount (110% of the principal amount outstanding of
the convertible bonds) on the date falling on the fifth
anniversary of the date of issue of the convertible bonds.

The bonds bear interest at the rate of 3.5% per annum
and payable annually.

The conversion price shall be amount in Swiss Francs
that will be equivalent to 130% of the average closing
prices of the shares of the Company as published in
the daily quotation sheets published by the Stock Ex-
change of Hong Kong Limited for 30 consecutive trad-
ing days up to and including the fifth business day prior
to the closing date per share.

The bondholders will have the right to convert, at the
conversion price, the whole of the principal amount of
the convertible bonds into shares at any time and from
time to time, from the date of issue of the convertible
bonds.

Bondholders may at any time during the period on or
after the date of issue of the convertible bonds and prior
to the close of business on the maturity date or (i) if
the Company shall have exercised its rights to redeem
the convertible bonds (tax redemption or early
redemption), then up to the fifth business day preced-
ing the date fixed for such redemption, (ii) if the Com-
pany shall be in breach of its obligations under the
terms of the convertible bonds (event of default), then
up to the time when the convertible bonds become due
and repayable to convert, at the conversion price, the
whole or any part of the convertible bonds held by the

bondholders into conversion shares.

2010 4 i # i
ANNUAL REPORT

QE e

ATZRELFENAH, PR RN A3
FTAR A4 AR 15,000,000 A BB Z B 57 #5551
B oC Al AL T DARR[E] | % (e B 8 it o, Ay
FIAEA AT B 2 B AT H A R AR H DABE el
G BR% ATHRUBR 7 1O AR BTG 110%) 1§ [ 4T ]
AR ) AT (5

% A HRUB R SRR A E A R GHE,, B3, R R
5 3.5%,

TR T AT L3R BRAE 5.  (EUA TEAR T
Wty F AR A TAE H (% B 1k =+ T
Ve H A A B BB TR <2 P i H R Tl
PIUCTE Y 130%,

IR AT H A R 31T B HRAT ARy 2
AR AR U B AL A B AR 1 AR B R T L
TSR 1 o

IR A TE A A (E 55 384T B s 1%, AfiAE
B H S R AT R B N AR AT ], B ()
AT (o M T 68 5 5 R M ] s L ) 2
REFI, R BRI E RS I 2 H RIS L& 2E H 5 (i)
A T S LA AT (R A B AT CE A F ),
FUJEL 30 AT 4 05 8 2 2 S0 R O , e B A e (5
FIA N IR A A A AT b 73 ] H4R 5 o 2 B
BB o

Rt AR A A N03



18.

2010 4 f # &
ANNUAL REPORT

BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

Convertible bonds (continued)

The carrying amounts of convertible bonds approxi-

mated their fair value.

As at 31 December 2010, the fair value of the liability
component, included in non-current borrowings, of the
convertible bonds was calculated using effective in-
terest method at the rate of 10.32%.

As at 31 December 2010, the fair value of the deriva-
tive component of the convertible bonds was calcu-
lated using the Monte Carlo Simulation Model. Any
change in the major inputs into the Monte Carlo Simu-
lation Model will result in changes in the fair value of

the derivative component.

The change in fair value of the convertible bonds dur-
ing the year resulted in a loss from changes in fair value
of RMB 22,193,000 (2009: RMB 9,996,000), which
has been recorded as “loss on revaluation of convert-

ible bonds” in the statement of comprehensive income.

Interest and other expenses of approximately
RMB4,019,000 (2009: RMB3,914,000) has been
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
in respect of the convertible bonds for the year ended
31 December 2010.
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19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS - ROUP 19. B GEFIH — A HE
Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary TP FIE A JEE: ) AR 2 1 55 BT e T 30 ) 2 B SR DA
differences under the liability method using the appli- [y 25 B, EL Rk ] BB YR AR AL,
cable taxation rates prevailing in the countries/places
in which the Group operates.
No deferred taxation was charged to equity during the ZASAE B AR AE B TE T RE RS (B E AR, ),
year (2009: Nil).
The movements in deferred tax assets during the year AAENRGE R TE & RE BN .
are as follows:
Provisions Tax loss Total
bt BB s ait
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-FE ZEFNE ZF-FFE ZFFNE ZF-FFE EINF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWETIL AR¥TIT ARWTE ARWTIT ARWTIL ARW¥TT
At 1 January N E—FE—H—H 6,813 5,753 907 2,375 7,720 8,128
Debited to the statement of BRI EEE (4,377) - (2,159) 4,377) (2,159)
comprehensive income
Credited to the statement of R E G FE - 1,060 1,997 691 1,997 1,751
comprehensive income
At 31 December Wt —H=+—H 2,436 6,813 2,904 907 5,340 7,720

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the re-
lated tax benefit through the future taxable profits is
probable. Most of the tax losses will expire in various

dates up to the year 2014.

BRAEAR A MBS AL B 1 2 S B S
PR, A REfE sl BUIHE P . Kb R iR 2 B
TR VB 2 — PU4E R[] H I E
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20. OTHER INCOME 20, HAdbUg A
2010 2009
TR AR TEEIE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREETFIC YN e 2TH
Government subsidies & Bl 1,077 184
Subsidies received from third parties BB =B - 291
Fair value gains on financial assets at fair N EEIERIER LR &/ 19,666 4,780
value through profit or loss e oy AU A B I A
Dividends income N 331 133
Business tax refund EHERIGR - 159
Profit on disposal of financial assets S EE IR 650 6,286
Compensation income BEEIA 632 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 28) HEE— T BB 2 T 2R (P ET: 28) 162 -
Others H A A 38 360
Total ot 22,556 12,193
During the year, the Group received RMB1,077,000 ZRAE AN A WIS BT EE A H nYBUR & B A R

(2009: RMB184,000) of government subsidies towards

the research and development projects.

21. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

21, Wl & EH

1,077,000 jo(ZZEEJUFE: AR 184,000 7o),

2010 2009
R R ZEEIAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
NRETIT NR¥ETTT

Finance costs: WBE N
- Exchange losses — [ S AR 2R (9,818) (1,878)
- Interest on margin financing - EEHEA (960) (481)
- Convertible bond interest — IR E S A (3,422) (3.317)
- Convertible bond expenses — AR (55 E (597) (597)
- Others — HoAth (31) (28)
&% (14,828) (6,301)

Finance income: WA
- Interest income from short term bank deposits — SR T A OR Bl 7 1,084
- Loan interest income —fEEFEUA 258 -
e 265 1,084
Finance costs - net BB - 135 (14,563) (5,217)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

22. EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales and administrative

expenses are analysed as follows:

22, HHMH

2010 4 i # i
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B A BT AT T

2010 2009
e Sk 2 “EBFNE
RMB’000 RMB’000
UNGH S T ANR¥TT
Cost of sales IR 16,317 20,674
Depreciation (Note 6) P (Fft it 6) 3,598 1,834
Amortisation of new drugs technology TR T R 2R AT Y 2,341 1,071
including in administrative expenses (Note 7) (B 7)
Auditors’ remuneration == E 1,153 641
Employee benefit expenses (Note 23) & EAm A B 1 (FfF 1 23) 17,642 13,402
Operating lease payment METHEREH 2,492 2,332
Provision for impairment loss of trade JEE S BR SR A8 5 (P 1) 9,747 1,245
receivables (Note 11)
Written off of work-in-progress TEE b A8 2K 14,451 -
Impairment loss on financial assets at fair A RBEEERBRCRZ 10,185 -
value through profit or loss L& pE R E R SR
Impairment loss of new drugs technology HrBE TR R 2k 4,210 -
Impairment loss on loan and other receivables B B WG IE R 2R 163 -
23. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 23. R BN
2010 2009
CHE AR ZEEIF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETIT ANR#TIT
Wages and salaries TE&ENH4 14,550 11,672
Retirement benefits scheme contributions SBRAE A B R 2,411 1,503
Employee share option benefits {8 B s B HEAE A1) 681 227
Total At 17,642 13,402

4
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23. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 23. & B a3 (48)
(a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (a) S S T E T 4
Employee
Salaries Provident share-based
Director’s fee and bonus fund contribution payment Total
S HERAH I AT [E RO fit
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
SE-RE O CERAE CF-%E CERRE CF-%F CEIAE CF-%% 0 CETRE CF-%F CZTE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET I ARBEFL  ARETC  ARKETT ARBTFL AREFC  ARETT  ARETT  ARETL  ARETE
William, Xia GUO iy} 506 466 - - 51 17 557 483
Maria, Xue Mei SONG K5 iff 307 381 17 15 43 15 367 411
Tao FENG iz 6 2 6 2
Xin WU Bk 6 2 6 2
Nathan Xin ZHANG e - - 6 2 6 2
Ming Yu WU SR 30 30 5 2 35 32
Paul CONTOMICHALOS - - 8 2 8 2
Hong Bo WANG FALH 8 2 8 2
Total A3t 30 30 813 847 17 15 133 44 993 936
(b)  Five highest paid individuals (b)  HARESHIMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the high- HAEEHMA LA —A(CEENE, —Z)A&
est in the Group for the year included two (2009: one) ONTEVE ST, A R FREN R T S, HiR =4
directors whose emolument are reflected in the analy- (ZEZIF: WA ZMEWT .
sis presented above. The emoluments payable of the
remaining three (2009: four) individuals during the year
are as follows:
2010 2009
CRRAE BB
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETIT NRMETTT
Salaries and allowances i e M b 910 999
Employee share-based payment B T AT 86 17
Retirement benefits scheme contributions IBRAE A B 51 60
Total &t 1,047 1,076

The emoluments of each of the five highest paid em-
ployees are less than RMB1,000,000.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any directors of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of

the directors has waived any emoluments in the year.

108l VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED

Tz f e N e B 2 Bl 38 0 i NIRRT 1,000,000

JCs

JRARAE LN, A B AR 1) A 2 B B ol A e
Fr B SO AT 8, VR R ABE M AA S
2 B2, SUTERSRERKAR ML, MRS URARE 4
TRCEEAL AT 5
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24. INCOME TAX 24. i i
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made P J7A 74 52 [ 7 A B2 1A 1 0 7 A s A A ] JRE BB
as the Group had no estimated assessable profit gener- T I, I S A v R AR B B (B E L
ated in Hong Kong for the year (2009: Nil). LI,
PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been calculated on FP ] A SE FIT AR AR 3 B A B SR T
the estimated assessable profit for the year according
to the relevant laws and regulations.
The applicable income tax rate is 25% as at 31 De- P TEFE+ T H =4 H A SRR R
cember 2010 (2009: 25%). 25%(—FEEILF:25%).
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated Srer el e = TP TSR E A
statement of comprehensive income represents:
2010 2009
“R R “EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREETIT AR T
PRC enterprise income tax rh B A 2E PSR
- current year — RAEJE 1,455 1,998
- over-provision in prior years — DABTAE 8 5 (1,997) (2,129)
Deferred taxation (Note 19) JWEIE R IE (M EE 19) 2,380 408
Total At 1,838 277

BoaR i EXAR A A N09
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24. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 24. Fris P (48)

DABRBE A/ 5 18) R Bk B, A 52 [ B {5 B S DA v
B BRSSPI AR G 2 Pl B 2 [ 53 40 T

The tax on the Group’s (loss)/profit before tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using PRC

Enterprise Income Tax rate as follows:

2010 2009

R FAE “ERNE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREETIT N T

(Loss)/profit before tax A B (s 48/ A7 (55,422) 6,310

Calculated at a tax rate of 25% (2009: 25%) PA 25% Fi R 51 4(2009:25%) (13,856) 1,262

Effect of differential tax rate of overseas entities T ANED S () A 3Ry s 2 10,106 2,113

Unrecognised tax loss MR 1B 985 -

Change in deferred taxes in respect of change 1B E B s (L S R A B 0 - (969)
in preferential tax rate B PEFTFEAE L

Derecognition of previously recognised e 485 G T 2 1140 28 IE o T 4,377 -

deferred tax assets

Expenses not deductible for taxation purpose AR EE & 2,521 -

Over-provision in prior years DABTAR B 18 5 18 445 (1,997) (2,129)

Others HoAth (298) -

Taxation ANAE TSR E 1,838 277

25. (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS 25.
OF THE PARENT

B2 T A i B ST A PR O 480)/ 8 )

AN T B RE T, AN T BB TSR (5
JE TR A RS R 56,928,000 7T(—FF LA HiAIA
L 6,276,000 L),

The loss attributable to owners of the parent is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the
extent of approximately RMB 56,928,000 (2009: Profit
RMB 6,276,000).
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26. BASIC AND DILUTED (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER 26. T Ky T e s 8/ 2 A
SHARE
(a)  Basic (loss)/earnings per share (@)  WIRIEARGER) BF
Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by divid- B IEFEAR (1) B A w B Ty BE AR B 28 535
ing the (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the par- TS S BR8] S A N AN T B B8 A 73 A%
ent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares TINAEF-35) e 8,
in issue during the year.
2010 2009
R AR ZEEIF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRHET T YN T
(Loss) /profit attributable to owners of the parent BT IELS (8 18)/ S ) (56,928) 6,276
Weighted average number of ordinary shares B A 735 % TR S35 i 8 363,512 362,810
in issue (thousands) Gl
Basic (loss) / earnings per share FLR T SR AR (5 18) B (15.66)il; 1.73 11l
(RMB cents per share) (UNL RS

BEamumEXARAE NN
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26. BASIC AND DILUTED (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER 26.
SHARE (CONTINUED)

AR R Y R O 48D/ B (4

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (b) e T (B 8)/ B

B ROl 4B/ R RS B AR A )
B PSR BB ks i ) 16 e B A 2 T HUIR B RALE
- 3E8 PR ARE P-4 i # 430,180,000 (- F R SLAE
433,445,000 ), St AT A B R IRHE ST 80 T
P52 L P FEOHE K ] HA R (55 2 T 97 B A T RO SRV A
M3 % 5% 66,668,000 (. EZE S1L4: 70,635,000 %)
M5BT, ST

The calculation of the diluted (loss)/earnings per share
for the year is based on the (loss)/profit attributable
to ordinary equity shareholders and adjusted to elimi-
nate the interest expense less the tax effect. The
weighted average number of 430,180,000 (2009: 433,
445,000) ordinary shares after adjusting for the ef-
fect of the dilutive potential ordinary shares to be is-
sued to the exercise of the options granted under all
relevant Share Option Schemes and the conversion
of convertible bond as detailed below of 66,668,000
(2009: 70,635,000) shares, calculated as follows:

2010 2009
ZHR R ZEREBAFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AT I ANR#TIT
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of parent B8 )1 BB A A (56,928) 6,276
(5 18)/ i 1)
Interest expense on convertible bond (net of tax) AR E R B (BB 3,422 3317
(Loss)/profit used to determine diluted FHUART B A B i (8 18)/ (53,506) 9,593
earnings per share BRI
Weighted average number of ordinary BB T IR S 363,512 362,810
shares in issue (thousands) ie (Gila)
Adjustment for: AHEE
- Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares A AN ) I A 5 1) K, 66,668 70,635
under the Company’s Share Option A R B T i
Schemes and the conversion of AT RN E ST 18
convertible bond (thousands) R 2 (T 1)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R M) 2 430,180 433,445

for diluted earnings per share (thousands)

JS IR F-329 s e (180

No diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the years ended
31 December 2010 and 2009 is presented as the as-
sumed conversion of convertible bond would result in

a (decrease)/increase in (loss)/earnings per share.
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27. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

27, REEEREHR

2010 4 i # i
ANNUAL REPORT

2010 2009
R R TEENFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREET I ANRHET T
(Loss)/profit before income tax BEHT G598/ A (55.422) 6,310
Adjustments for: kS
- Depreciation (Note 6) — P8 (35 6) 3.598 1,834
- Dividends income from financial assets at fair value — o EEERERTIES (331 (133)
through profit or loss Al E IR A
- Amortisation of new drugs technology (Note 7) —HEBH(REET) 2,341 1,071
- Loss on revaluation of convertible bonds — ] A A A 22,193 9,996
- Exchange loss — M S8 8,611 1,650
- Written off of work-in-progress — TEEE fmRE R 14,451 -
- Impairment loss on loan and other receivables — B R B G E R 18 163 -
- Impairment loss on financial assets at fair value — A PR E G 1B 10,185 -
through profit or loss
- Impairment loss on new drugs technology — BRI A 1R 4,210 -
- Impairment loss on prepayment — TEAT ARSI s 45 1,338 -
- Profit on disposal of financial assets at fair value — i EEEBRERTIES (152) (6.286)
through profit or loss Al E 5 W
- Provision for impairment loss of trade receivables — JER ' 5 BRI (A 1 A 9,747 1,245
- Gain on disposal of a subsidiary — 4 — [ BB 2> ml s (162) -
- Gain on disposal of new drugs technology — HE R AT (2,577) -
- Finance cost-net — B E A — A 4,788 2,680
- Fair value gains on financial assets at fair value — o PEEMERRCIRY 4 (19,666) (4,780)
through profit or loss Tl PE 2 A AE (A BN RR
- Employee share option benefits — & & IR HEAR A 681 227
Operating cash flow before movement in working capital EEE ) 3,996 13,814
- Increase in work-in-progress — TEE N (12,650) (4.364)
- Increase in trade receivables — BB 5 HR RS (4.871) (3.268)
- Increase in prepayments and other receivables — TEAS R B H At JE Wi (384) (563)
- Increase in other payables and accruals — Al B AST 3 S B A B R 3 17,947 5,207
- Decrease in receipt in advance — TEWR F > (361) (796)
Cash generated from operations ROETEB EAZ Ble 3,677 10,030

BoaR i EXARA A N3
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28. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 28. H A — [ 8 2 W]
During the year, the Group disposed of its 99.99% TANASAE R, ANEEE 7] BB /7 Venturepharm Group
equity interest in Venturepharm Life Sciences Capital Corp. HEH RN E 4 mA R EH R AT W
Limited to Venturepharm Group Corp., a related party, 99.99% HEZ5, UME % 10,000 ¥ 0 (FH & A N R
for a consideration of HK$10,000 (equivalent to #9.000 7C),
RMB9,000).
The net assets of the disposed subsidiary were as T B I A F 2
follows:
RMB’000
ANRETIT
NET ASSETS DISPOSED OF G R R E
Other payables and accruals HoAth AR R TR B (1s3)
Gain on disposal HE R 162
Total consideration RN = 9
Satisfied by: PATR 277 234
Cash B4 9
29. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 29. BT AR E
At the reporting date, the Group had commitments for S H, AREEREE L. T SRR
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable TTEH RCETH AR 2 R AR AR 80T
operating leases in respect of machinery, land and
buildings which fall due as follows:
2010 2009
TR RAE “ERNE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRHETIT ANR#TIT
No later than 1 year —AEH 2,730 2,122
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years —AEPL_FAH AR A 907 2,910
Later than 5 years T AR 40 475
Total &t 3,677 5,507
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30. B S
The following transactions were carried out with re- NG AN T2 55 E T .

lated parties:

Name of company Nature of transactions 2010 2009

TR R “EFF

RMB’000 RMB’000

NS ANRBTIT

BB (R B TR A ] Royalty income 5,400 5,640

Rental expense 120 120

Venturepharm Group Corp. Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 28) 9 -

BRI AR AT FrarEfE B U 5,400 5,640

HEE M 120 120

Venturepharm Group Corp. BB 2 B R (B3 28) 9 -
Those related parties are under common control of a P BN AR A ]

director of the Company.

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31. BOR A B
As at 31 December 2010, the Group and the Company RZEBE—TETZH =1 —H, AEEREATY
has no significant contingent liabilities. IEE R R A,

Bak i EXARA A NS
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32. CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the

WEZZE-FH T A ST —HIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

32, EARKIE

TRHCE AR, ARG B O S0E (R R A 2 AR

reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows: BT
2010 2009
“E-FE CETIE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T NRWT T
Property, plant and equipment LN )& - 730

33. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

In January 2011, 731,600 shares of HK$0.1 par value
each were issued under the share option scheme at an
average exercise price of HK$0.42 per share. The ex-
ercise of share options yielded the proceeds of
RMB309,668.

116] VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED

33, W H®REH

AT A —J, 731,600 faEEE $0.1 # W
ZHNE VAT B $0.42 Wl 2 AT R 817, AT
5 S O PO 15 2 SR TEURS A R 309,668 T
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